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Overview of the Company

MREBNERERNERLA ([ARAE]) ZHF Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) was
EARAME ([FE]) %LK*”?‘@ FEEL R formed through the restructuring of Harbin Power Plant Equipment

EANKEE R EBUREERRR([RE Group Corporation (“HPEGC"), which is the oldest large-scale power
ERA)) REFMBRGBESHE: ﬂﬁﬁi/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% plant equipment manufacturer in the People’s Republic of China
HRBEARBEE([ZXEH]) BEMMK = (the "PRC") and its three affiliates: Harbin Electrical Machinery

KN BER - THERETFR-ADER—N Works, Harbin Boiler Works and Harbin Turbine Works (“the three

NEFE+AANBERERBEZMKL — D major power factories”). These three major power factories were

F+ZATAB HREEBBMAERFM ([EA established in the 1950s. The Company was established in Harbin,

BZRr]) EMR S PRC on 6th October, 1994. The dealings in the shares of the
Company commenced on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "HKSE") on 16th December, 1994,

RZEEME+_A=+—H RA2BABEREAR As at 31st December, 2004, the share capital of the Company
M8INER EREFAMIAMNBENHRA comprised of 1,189,151,000 shares, of which 469,151,000 shares
46,915 18 Mk ° were circulated on the HKSE as H shares.

ARAIREMBAR ([AEE]) RPBEBEANRE The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the largest
EANEERGERER RF2XB0E: manufacturer of power plant equipment in the PRC. The Group's
principal activities include:

. EXMEE ERAERAE 1,000MW . Thermal power equipment: boilers, steam turbines and steam
Zfﬁhﬁ AR TR Eﬁﬁé BRI R turbine generators with single unit capacity up to 1,000MW
BEBERBRERESRE PE2HERNFRE heavy-duty gas turbine and combined cycle units, the largest
IR K2 5% e 3L 45 E 3t~ CFB BOILER - PFBCE manufacturing base for clean coal combustion equipment in

the PRC: CFB boilers, PFBC, etc.

. KEETHREBR BERTEZKEIOOMWZ . Hydro power equipment: hydro power sets with single unit
KANESHA capacity up to 700MW
. REIRRE ZERZEREASRE . Nuclear power main equipment: nuclear island and

conventional island equipment for nuclear power plants

. HttEm: BURESHK TERE ITX7 . Other products: ancillary equipment, industrial boilers,

W R E IRER - BERER B industrial steam turbines, control devices, AC/DC motors,

P BORSEREREESE valves for power stations, pressure vessels and axial
compressor, etc.

. BURECIRAEAR . Turn-key construction of power station projects and other
engineering projects

. NERKEHREKE RS . Contract supply of complete sets of thermal and hydro power
equipment
. REEURBEELOER . Import and export of power equipment
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Overview of the Company

. REZBREMN TRCBM AT E 5 %

Engineering technology R&D of complete set of power
equipment

. REZERENRGHRERE . System R&D of complete set of power equipment

. FERBREREEROMARME

R&D of power equipment and its ancillary equipment
. RirsEE B E AN RS . Technology transfer, technical consultation and services
. BRIBEBSE . Environmental protection engineering services

AEBBRALAENEENRH ARG EHRA The Group possesses a comprehensive range of advanced production
BN HERERNNEUARENETEEE and research facilities. Its capabilities in research and development,
L”ﬁ%zk?iﬁq:‘ ERBELHA- product manufacturing and power station construction have been
in the forefront of the power plant equipment manufacturing

industry in the PRC.

AEEMEREPIINTREGEE KER (BN The Group is located in Harbin, PRC, also known as the “City of
i I the Power”.
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Financial Highlights

& 2% TURNOVER

BZ+-A=+—HLFE AR¥T R
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Financial Highlights

AEERFE 5B EERAGHIINT: The summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are as follows:

BE+t-A=+t—-HLEE

Unit Year ended 31st December,

By 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
] AE®FT 10,215,670 5,144,246 3,821,280 2,860,696 3,028,914
Turnover Rmb’000
B % A1 4 A AREFTT 168,963 70,336 53,279 36,332 49,326
Profit before tax Rmb’'000
REFF) ARSFT 117,572 53,471 37,691 21,768 39,089
Net profit for the year Rmb’'000
BERE AE®FT 31,015,199 17,513,741 10,605,175 9,857,509 8,693,608
Total assets Rmb’000
BERE AR T 27,361,591 13,992,527 7,146,537 6,908,916 5,735,118
Total liabilities Rmb’000
DR REER ARMFT 540,546 516,189 499,949 21,649 8,721
Minority interests Rmb’000
A% B %S AE#®TFr 3,113,062 3,005,025 2,958,689 2,926,944 2,949,769
Shareholders’ fund Rmb’000
FRFEE AR 2.62 2.53 2.49 2.46 2.48
Net assets per share Rmb
FREF AR 0.099 0.045 0.032 0.018 0.033
Earnings per share Rmb

5
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Financial Highlights

TEEK PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

ARAFEEAREBRRARNRHELCEERRY The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides

TEWRBAR- corporate management services to its subsidiaries.

BZ2004512A31ALEE BZ20035 128318 LFE
Year ended 31st December, 2004 Year ended 31st December, 2003
RIREROBEREREXNAEM BXE EXAA BRE BENE
Turnover and contribution to operating Turnover  Contribution to Turnover Contribution to
profit by major product categories operating operating
profit profit
AEETT ARBB T AEEFT AREEFT
Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
NEFHTE 7,208,106 559,194 2,898,839 395,225

Main thermal power equipment

KETHEHE 728,162 35,723 517,555 120,359
Main hydro power equipment

BUHTERE 1,180,669 59,675 1,179,968 62,996
Engineering services for power stations

BUHBHELEER 224,614 26,062 147,132 38,473
Power equipment accessories and parts

SERERREMERERS 874,119 82,332 400,752 36,004
A.C./D.C. motors and other products and services

10,215,670 762,986 5,144,246 653,057
Eth kB 157,636 114,915
Profit from other activities
AARIFTEERCER 751,659 (697,636)
Expenses not allocated to major products
BLADE M 168,963 70,336

Profit before tax
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Mr. Geng Lei, Chairman

HEARR:

AAMRRIREVEBES NRERN B R A A2004
FIAMBZENANBZFERE URERALQEZ
BRACASUREHS-

0045 P EEERERRER ENFREEE
RTERARERERERM 2 -NRAZEPNR
EIRODARDE]) BER T HOBRREE hAESR
RTEENERRUBREANERBRBENERR
fEe

20045 RARERL EMNER—F HABUARKE
RERY BERBRNTIHHRMA A EE B
WENER AA2BRCARS N RAREBSR
BRERTZEARK

MBRERESIERH F2004F12A310 ARE
ARBRIERRENZRENABARE11,7578
oot FEER119.88%  FRCEFIAARE0.099
T EREEBARBI.01 56780 L FFEE
98.58% ° (BB LIXENFTmFRAFR(ER
BRI —&)
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Chairman’s Statement

To all shareholders:

| am pleased to present the annual report of Harbin Power
Equipment Co., Ltd (the company) for the year ended 31st
December, 2004.

In the year of 2004, the economy of China continued to grow
rapidly and the power supply is greatly needed. As one of the
largest manufacture bases in the field of power generation
equipments, Harbin Power Equipment Co., Ltd not only met with
new developing opportunities but also take the responsibility for
offering good quality equipments and service to Chinese power
development.

2004 is important year in the company’s developing history. With
the support of sound domestic political environment, great market
demand, implement effectively on the company's developing
strategy and hard working for all the company’s employees, the
company’'s business has improved rapidly and has made
breakthroughs in many fields.

The business results grew stably. For the year ended 31st, 2004,
the Company recorded consolidated profit after taxation and
minority interest of Rmb117.57 million, representing an increase
of 119.88% over last year; earnings per share was Rmb0.099 yuan.
Turnover was Rmb10,216 million, representing an increase of
98.58% over last year. (PIs see details in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis”).
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Chairman’s Statement

BRRERBEELE M- BEREART EECRRE The rewarding for shareholders grew obviously. In order to reward
RERBREFUHIENNBEFREBRARE our shareholders, The Board of Directors recommend a final dividend
6,065& TR R ERAR S MERKREARE of Rmb60.65 million from the profit of the year available for
0.05107C  HAR AR R M AR E G A B 1 B R Ty 1% distribution. The final dividend was Rmb0.0510 yuan per share.
BREEIRA A —ERBEARRITAMEN FHE X Dividend of shareholders for H shares will be paid in Hong Kong
B AAEE—THBRARK.06087T BRHRAE dollars, the exchange rate used, this is HK$1 = RMB1.0608, is based
f& £.0.04818 7T Z MR B 720058 A 13A 3k 2 on average closing rate of the People’s Bank of China during the
AIEE T2005F5 R 13AERERERREMEL calendar week proceeding the date of recommending final dividend.
PR The final dividend for every H share will be HK$0.0481. On or
before the day of 13th August, 2005, The dividend will be
distributed to shareholders who have registered on the shareholders’
list by the day of 13th May, 2005.

ANAHMAERRTERAREI02E T HHELT The officially signed contract value is amounted to 30.2 billion.
B RRRFTERBEKE RBEANE EF The Company kept in leading position in large scale hydro power

MHER R ERE A REKETIHE A XHE projects, large scale thermal power equipment and large scale heavy
#65% ' 600MWiBHER R N ETHIEHE E100% duty gas turbine projects. The market occupation rate for large

ERRETIHEE RA9% - R RE —ZF THBATRE scale hydro power exceeded 65%. The market occupation rate for
IR T MASRERIE S FI300MWA R K & A 4 600MW ultra super critical thermal power is 100%; The market
HERNE ARARBTMOmEER: BER occupation rate for heavy duty gas turbine is 49%. At the same
BEEBTREE2ARERAERYEARNE time the winning contract of gas-steam combined cycle generation
FRAGEHRERETEE -4 RAEMRER unit HRSG island and 300MW large scale pump storage units
MZEMBETE TEM 300MWABHRARTSE exploited new market filed for the Company. The winning
RAEIEARERRIBRELIERTENR manufacture contract for 2 units’ nuclear power steam generator
e of Pakistan Chashma Project pushed the Company to make a big
movement in nuclear power manufacture and laid the foundation
for nuclear power market with great prospects. The winning contract
of 300MW thermal power unit Desulphurization Island shows that
the Company has the capability to manufacture environment
protection products.

BOEMBREMTHE ZORMELEHARE -2 F Leading product system is more perfected and the core technology
BB 1T 5| B BT A BRI T B3 BB T has reached to a new stage. The Company took positive actions on
B E R RE700 MWAE KE - 600MWA R 2 /2 the absorption of transferred technology and technology renovation
NE AR EE S AR ENRMEE BT including design and manufacture 700MW large scale hydro power
R A BIE600MW ~ 1,000MWE AR B R B R X B and 600MW large scale air-cooling thermal power. The Company is
Hae ) EAERTFRERRRGEMBEN capable to design and manufacture 600MW, 1000MW ultra super

BREMFE T 1,000MWiR BB R0 E R IE - critical thermal power by the way of technology introduce and
300MWA B H 7k & A 4R RDEDE B AR - B SE A0l 3 technical cooperation. The Company has mastered the technology
ERZ-NMREELTTEERNARBNR LR T of assembly and test for 9FA heavy duty gas turbine. The newly
A= signed technology introduce agreements on 1000MW ultra super

critical coal combustion boiler, 300MW large scale pump storage
units, wet desulphurization and desalpetre technology speeded up
the Company’s leading projects’ upgrade and increased leading
competitive capability.

=
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Chairman’s Statement

HEZRGRXTER SELNAEERA-NE= The production system bear proof and the production capability
AERMESEHET12008TEU L RARRER have increased rapidly. The production output for three leading

HEERA KB FNITHEN ERTETEERE units were above 12000MW. It was difficult to delivery the
2 H2003F #5008 T R 2120045 1,4008 TR A equipment according to contract’s requirement. With one year's
BEARE AR THRPHEG #ETARMSE continuous hard working, the Company has achieved a big
25 TRARSAEIEKENRES BEQFL improvement from 5000MW in 2003 to 14000MW in 2004, met its
THRRSEEFEENEEEBERM TEL. commitment to customer, maintained the company’s reputation,

improved the Company's work ability in all fields and made the

Company feel confidence in finish heavy tasks in the following

years.
RAREABRTE RAEEEHETERERZ The Company’s management system was more and more completed.
BE BNEZEE REZEgNFMEE S #— The company board of directors set up strategy development
THREMTETEZENERE RE T RADAEK committee, audit committee, nomination committee and salary
Fo committee to further complete and regulate the board of director’s
operation, which have improved the Company’s management level.
B2 BB—FNEUNIE RAREERNKEER In general, with one year's efficient work, the Company's
2 ERFEREER EEECEMELNEE—F manufacture capability has been improved a lot, the Company's
HE 2BREItLRRS BEOEE RARAIZHEER profits have increased a lot and the asset quality and operation
HFH RS- efficiency was looking up. All employees were working diligently
and confidently and the Company was in a positive developing
tide.
2005 BINEBIRERERN RERETHH In 2005, the positive condition of domestic macro environment,

HEE RERILE T EEMMBOR NREE B the canonical development of power equipments market and further

ARANERREMHRT RENINDRE - DAILEF implement of “Thrive Northeast Old Industry Base” strategy provided

HEERMEOKR BRNEFITENGERF a sound outer environment for the Company's development. The

BEMNRES ARARISENERET T AR results achieved through renovation and development, full contracts
on hand and the improvement in the comprehensive competitive
advantages laid a foundation for the Company’s development in
the following years.

ESEMARARE 20055 A A HEE TR Board of Directors and me is aware that the Company will continue

B BR(CBR #HEH ERAIFMUAARK to take active actions in all fields, finish production and

MERER BRMHSAELIE TREELET management task, improve economy profit and create more rewards

B RAELENZ ARRAIEFELZHNER. for our shareholders with implement of advanced technology,
international development, system renovation, management
renovation and strategy of regarding human resource as the core
of the Company’s development in 2005.

5
10 |-



EERBES

Chairman’s Statement

N B NAR 5] 3 BT B A RURANBIET - K 1) ansg The Company will speed up the digestion, absorption and renovation

BOBMEBEFREVKEEETNAERZER of transferred technology to strengthen its core technologies and

BR -BBRBBAR KT BERFRAMEE knowledge in order to create its own technologies and skill sets. It

R E—FRAEEMDE - BBRAMBENHT will reduce design cost and production cost and improve its product

8 FERYNERD RebERE. quality by way of improve scientific research design ability. It will
reduce manufacture cycle and enhance productive efficiency by way
of adopting new technology and new process.

EEEN T EHEAREMRE 2R & MANKE As the same time of working on the important projects

REUTIREABERRINBERTSRAENE. development, the Company will strengthen on international market
BERR BATSERNSKER: BENEHEE taking general contract for international power station projects as
HERRIZER 2HUNEE SUERRIMNRI-& dominant factor to build the structure that the domestic and foreign

B Z£HEEAAELIE MRARBEBRCER S market can complementary mutually. With continuing to
strengthening cooperation with multinational companies in multi-
levels and all-directional, it will improve its work in all fields, such
as technology, management and marketing etc and speed up its
developing internationally.

ARIBHEBNIREX N EHEEZREG URRE Continuing cost reduction as key process, taking improving product
MENERER BUERK AR B BUIEHIRET K gross profit as key point, updating cost control system, the Company
AEBEA RERN ERER RR2ART will control design cost, sourcing cost, manufacture cost and
O MRS e BREENEN TELE(AE managing cost efficiently to enhance the Company’s ability of
ERBER - DAGMREEEE(ER Uit A winning profit. Strengthening control on subcontracts, the Company
AR HBLTENEERSNEEFRERRINE will complete societalized production organization system. The
A-FABKRIEREER L HERANEREN Company will speed up informationization and takes it as point of
m—ER- contact to push forward the implement on advanced managing
philosophy and managing methods in the Company. Within the
year of 2005, the Company will set up a financial setting account
center to reach a common management on the whole capitals.

NRIBE-—FTHREZFEEXZAENGEI BATH The Company will further regulate training on professionals to
RENEBERBEGRE HERBHEIKREO RS create positive conditions for talented people to make progress

MiEs BEARIRRERNEZ. and give full play to their skills.

AANBE ARl - TR EEEEROKE & | believe that the Company will grasp develop opportunity and

2005F M LEFBGE RN RIK-RAIEZENE make greater breakthrough in the work of 2005. The Board of

BEHRRNERTRED Directors and managers are confidence on the development in the
further.

EER Chairman

BE Geng Lei

RAE BRE —ZTRFMNA+AH Harbin, the People’s Republic of China, 16th April, 2005

s
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FEQEETERRE MACRO-ECONOMY SITUATION AND INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT

0045 HBEIRBRERKFRBER BNEERE In the year of 2004, China economy continued to grow rapidly.
b EFERIS% - HEERKERBER ENE The gross domestic product grew by 9.5 per cent compared with

KENHER 2FHBEL FFIER148%  BEN last year. With the rapid development of economy, the demand for
BERNE6EEREBSLNFRE - ENE electric power obviously increased. The electric power consumption

FETREERNEREE - BRRENFTK & grew by 14.8 per cent compared with that of last year. Inspite of
REZSHRE-—FPNR - 2EHHFAIEERB this, 26 provincial electric power grids restricted power supply by
60008 TR #H T EEXENERT K -BRIK turning off power brakes and the shortage of electricity have

BRIEZETFEMBBARRNELSZE RAAE effected economy development and people’s life. In order to meet
ETRENHERE AEEDRTRMRANE power demand, the power supply construction was speeded up
EHE. and the new approved start-up projects for the whole year have

exceeded 60000MW. The step-by-step implementation of the
national policy “To revitalize the Northeast old industry base” has
created a sound policy environment. Now, the Group faces
unprecedented opportunities.

FTERR NEW CONTRACTS

HHAMAIDRENRERERNOTIZEE A& With positive external environment and rapidly increasing contracts,
EABRCHERE UNIARPREATE ERR the Group adjusted marketing strategy, took “Serving our customer”
SEREER ZENEAAERERTEREE £ as tenet, focused on long term development, and took effort on
Tk EZEEHERTSEERORE BAK unit with big capacities and new products. Consolidating the market
SEEVERHEIAMNEE EDHEROARKR occupation rate of regular products, meanwhile, the Group enlarged

R BREENREERETER 2 FRFAMEIE its advantages in exploring new products and impelled product’s
#3020 BARNE LR KFH2003F-EPE upgrade, which laid foundation for the Group's long-term
R E29ET HEERERS5.76% T2 development. The new-receiving contracts have already amounted

REIEETE19RIT 1 EERER6.30% © FEE to Rmb30.2 billion, which just next to the history record in the
AEROOMWAEFRERNMBEREXNR year of 2003. Among which, the main equipments contracts have
45% @ 300MWA B EMERM T HIERENR reached Rmb25.9 billion, representing 85.76 per cent of the whole
32% - REDKBHRAEH TIH1EE X R66% © 600MW contracts; engineering service contracts was up to Rmb1.9 billion,
NERAEKESR F—FHLHERS - FHAR= representing 6.3 per cent of the whole contracts. Among new
I F4XT00MWA B K B # 48 - B 37 300MW contracts, the market share of 600MW thermal power main units’
KE BE 7K &R - 2 0 2X600MWR 1 7 HE 7 B B e product is 45 per cent, for 300MW thermal power main units
RFIHRBETAMR - K AMERREEURE product is 32 per cent, for large hydro power units product is 66
EIAREB AREARRENERERANETE per cent. 600MW thermal power main units and large hydro power
ENMTARSEERGRE E—SHD TEETEE units have increased to certain extent compared with that of last
mEARRR ZETAEETEEMWR LA year. Especially, the contracts of 4X700MW Three Gorges Project
right bank large-scale hydro power equipment, Bailianhe 300MW
pump storage hydraulic turbine, Yingkou 2X600MW ultra super
critical units with double casings and double exhausts, 7 gas-steam
combined cycle units such as Zhenhai project in Zhejiang province
and 2 units of Chashma nuclear steam generator in Pakistan have
broadened the Group’s product lines, impelled the Group's
upgrading on leading products and consolidated the Group’s leading
position in its main products.

5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

S EHERK PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

004FAENRRERNTERSY REANE £E The feature of the year of 2004 is diversified products, tight
IBEE FERBRATET - RTREEPNE schedule, heavy task and full-load operation of main facilities. In
K BRRXEASR ARBERNTH#ELEEAEA N order to ensure delivery schedule and meet customers’ demand,
ELEREN WAERERSETIUE BRBRE the Group adopted various measures to improve production
B HRRELERE RSB BMAEENs % organization, conducted innovation on production bottlenecks,
EEETEBR EMEIMERNEE MR HIME purchased key facilities and set up a new boiler workshop.
B EIEMNER KNEEREEARERS. Meanwhile, the Group also enhanced quality control, improved
PEATRETRME14,555MW (LA T8 B A quality assurance system, increased outsourcing and strengthened
FMUKEWAE) b EFHER137.39%  EREUH the management of outsourced products. Thus, the product output
BT 508 12,295MW, b, 3£ 133.52% & Bk increased by a big margin and created the record in the history of
AR EMN636 13,677MW, Lt EFHER205.15% ¢ the Group. The total output for the year was up to 14,555MW (in
A E M T KASE 12,122MW, I F F 3 terms of steam turbine generator units and hydro power turbine
R 137.50%; K 2 EH A TR 258 2,433MW, I generator units), representing an increase of 137.39 per cent
EFI1ER136.84% o compared with that of last year. Among which, 50 units of utility
boiler with total capacity of 12,295MW, an increase of 133.52 per
cent over last year; 63 steam turbines for power plant with total
capacity of 13,677MW, an increase of 205.15 per cent over 2003
and 48 turbine generators with total capacity of 12,122MW, an
increase of 137.50 per cent over 2003; 25 units of hydro power
turbo-generators with total capacity of 2,433MW, an increase of
136.84 per cent over last year.

IR REE R ERERILEARFC0OMWE R T8 The Shanxi Datong air-cooling steam turbine units with 600MW
BNAEERENTEE A B ELDIL600MWil exploited by the Group itself has been put into operation after
BABENRAETARAEBEGERREEE installation within this year and it operates well. This is one of the
ENFAENRRBREASEZES D NAIEE largest capacity air-cooling units, which is of significant meanings
ﬁi@?lﬂ AARBE—FSHETS BARLOET in further broadening air-cooling unit market. The domestic first

EHRINEZER- super critical unit of Qinbei project with 600MW has been put into

operation; The 9FA heavy-duty gas turbine manufactured by HPEC-
GE consortium achieved success in assembly and test and completed
assembly for 6 units and test for five units within the year, which
symbolized that the Group has made progress in the field of heady
duty gas turbine manufacture.

BUHIRREIE HASM BB ERENE In respect of engineering services, the delivery of whole power
B BExIiR2004F1ABRARP KR—FME plant for stage one project of Sudan El Gaili combined-cycle power
REET BESHES R BIN2X600MWAE station project was completed in January, 2004 and operated well
BEE "REEEEE2DEINRS HERRE during the warranted year; For HenCheng thermal power units
2X50MWA ERABIAE TR MEEIER (2X600MW), the first unit was delivered to site; for the general
2K BRSTE /ﬁﬂiﬁ?“;ﬁlﬁﬁ BRI contracting project of CaoNgan Thermal power plant in Vietnam
E-BEIEABHE K REMKHERETK (2X55MW), the power plant and sourcing work were completed
85% ' WHEEIC2EMMA. and 95 per cent equipments has been delivered to site; for Sudan

Marowei Transmission and Distribution Line project, the design work

is done, most part of tender work has been completed, 85 per cent

equipment material has been purchased and the line construction

already began.
Hh
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R ERE NS E R&D AND TECHNOLOGY COOPERATION

2004 AEBRARMAEER2.04E T 7THK In the year of 2004, the Group invested 204 million in R&D and
TIWO7TEFERRENEHRE FEHEAH completed 167 items of new products’ R&D. Among which, the
600MW * 300MWA B 3 # 5% 8 17 350 - W ¥ 600MW and 300MW thermal power units were upgraded; the
600MW + 1000MW it E2 £ 52 - 300MWAE IR i fb K 3 600MW and 1000MW ultra super critical units, the 300MW
I8 300MWHI K E Be il SRR R S R A R Circulated Fluidized Bed Boiler, the 300MW pump storage project
HI{E-BE LS ENRINETRLREK EAER and heavy duty gas turbine have been researched and developed.
TORENMRABENERNE BRI EEE By absorbing the digesting technology, the Group has mastered
EmWATERIOCOOMWEB B RRBE &2 assembly and test skill for 9FA gas turbine. The R&D for the other

600MWE G 52 5 12 - B 38 300MW1E IR 1L IR 3R 48 - projects such as Zhejiang Yuhuan 1000MW ultra super critical boiler,

7 = T 70 5E T 600MWH A8 DA T K BY 47Kk &5 B Changshu 600MW super critical boiler, Kaiyuan 300 MW circulated

ARG EEER- fluidized boiler, new type 600MW units with 3 casings and 4
exhausts and large-scale pumped storage unit have been successfully
developed.

ERFHENRRAEEEME T REBARNE Meanwhile, the Group strengthened its cooperation with

B RS ETIERG T ER2ER - RRERIRF international companies and achieved a lot in technology transfer.
#E 7600-1000MW A 8 i R 88 18 5 i 37 o) o Within the year, the Group successfully signed with foreign

300-1000MWE B BrA B R IMEE i B EfE companies Technology License Agreement on 600-1000MW ultra
{ENOXE R ZA(SCRIB T E R B = IBER AR super critical boiler; Technology Transfer Agreement on 300-
AR AT 35 5 513 7 300MWHIK B b i 48 538 1000MW deaerator, SCR and wet fuel gas desulphurization;

BATAI200MWE R AR E SRR - ELBENE introduced manufacture technology on 300MW pumped storage
i BEAEEFSERENERERKT BXE units and 200MW air cooling steam turbine generation units. The
ENREEREAEEESR enforcement of these contracts promoted the Group's leading

products to international level, consolidated and improved the
Group's position in this industry and was of significant meanings
for the Group's further development.

AEEFEERFANRERAERS ZIL2X650MWIZE The group has achieved significant results for its leading products
IHERBERM RS —FR ZBU2X650MWE in the year of 2004. Qinshan Nuclear Power Station Project has
RERAEERME AEERENKERERL won the first prize of National Science Progress Award, for which
A% A RIFT T RECOOMWIE B EBITHRITT the Group supplied 2X650MW conventional island equipment; the
B EEERITREE RN RAERET No. 4 unit of Tianjin Datang Panshan project has set up a new
RERSH +ESREMoTRALTELHSOREE record of continuing operation for 600MW units. In addition, this
PENTAREANZBEAEIETRARAFTEF unit won special prize in the competition with 38 units provided by
RERBER RAEEEBFTERE. 17 power generation companies; the No. 6 unit from Shiliquan
Power Plant won a special prize competed with 217 thermal power
units with 300MW from 80 power generation companies all over

the country, which gained reputation for the Group.

5
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& F CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AFTER TAX
2004 AEBEERFHA11,7578 7T b FFE In 2004, the Group recorded net consolidated profit of Rmb117.57

£119.88% : BRZH0.0997T - bt £ F3E400.054 million, an increase of 119.88 per cent as compared to that of the

T HREEFER3N,3068 L L EFEHREM last year. Profit per share recorded Rmb0.099, an increase of

10,8048 7 BREEFEA2.6270 th L FHRIE Rmb0.054 over last year. The net assets at the end of the term

HN0.097T e recorded Rmb3,113.06 million, an increase of Rmb108.04 million
compared with that of the end of 2003. Net assets per share
recorded Rmb2.62, and increase of Rmb0.09 compared with that
to the end of 2003.

’RE DIVIDEND

EEEREBERE200MFERBEAFTR The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of Rmb0.0510
AR ®0.05107C(2003F £ £ & /%0.00807T) ° per share for 2004, as compared to that of Rmb0.0080 in 2003.

EER TURNOVER

2004F AEEERF L EBKUWA,021,5678 T In 2004, the Group recorded turnover of Rmb10,215.67 million, an
b EFHERI8.58% « H - ABEFHRENEER increase of 98.58 per cent compared to the last year. During the
A720,81METT th EFIER148.65% i KEFHE year under review, turnover of the thermal power main units was
BNEEERT28168 T L L FIER40.69% : & Rmb7,208.11 million, an increase of 148.65 per cent over last year.
HWIRRENEEER118,0678 L Lk EFIE Turnover of hydropower main units was Rmb728.16 million, an
R0.06% EHBEEREEEMNE X8 /R22,461 increase 40.69 per cent over last year. Turnover of power plant
EL L EFIER5266% REREULETER engineering services project was Rmb1,180.67 million, an increase
BRENEEFERTANET L LEEER of 0.06 per cent compared to last year. Turnover of power plant
118.12%°2004F 2 ¥ B RN T ERAREER accessories and parts was Rmb224.61 million, an increase of 52.66
HEREE AP ERZ M- per cent over last year. Turnover of AC/DC motors and other
products and services was Rmb874.12 million, an increase 118.12
per cent over last year. The increase of turnover was caused by
remarkable power demand and more previous contracts.

FR-AEEHAORMIINELEERAGEEEBKK During the year, the export sales and the domestic sales

AB19.01%  TEHOTMRIFEMBE- denominated in foreign currencies of the Group accounted for 19.01
per cent of the turnover of main business activities, which was
mainly in Asia and in Africa.

B A cosT

FR AEENTEEBKA RIS, 2688 It L During the year, the cost of main business activities of the Group
FHEIN496,1508 7T 118 5110.47% » R E was Rmb9,452.68 million, an increase of Rmb4,961.50 million and
BRABRAERAOKAEE ST R RN R4 110.47 per cent as compared to last year. Except for the
HEBRLERENALANBEERRA- corresponding increase in cost brought by the increase in turnover

of main business activities, the price increase of raw materials was
the main reason for the increase in cost.

Hh
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ERRERNZ GROSS PROFIT AND PROFIT MARGIN

FHN AEEEXENABT6,2998 L EFI X In 2004, the gross profit of the Group was Rmb762.99 million and
RT.47% t EF TE5.22(E8 5 e the profit margin is 7.47 per cent, a decrease 5.22 per cent over
last year.

Hbh - AN EFHRBZBEMNRS59198 T 7 X Among which the profit for thermal power main units were
R776% b EFTESSTEB DB KEETHEE Rmb562.84 million. The profit margin for thermal power main units
EMRISNET EMNERLNYG - L EFTR was 7.76 per cent, a decrease of 5.87 per cent compared to last
1835EBE D B TRRBEFNAS5,9688 T E year. The profit for hydropower main units was 35.72 million. The
F%& £5.05% + b EF 0. 2918 5 2 3 BUh & profit margin for hydropower power main units was 4.91 per cent,
REEEREMNR2,60687T EMER11.60% - i a decrease of 18.35 per cent compared to last year. The profits for
FETRI4SEEAE RENERRETEMSE power plant engineering services were Rmb59.68 million, the profit
RBHENAS233B T EFEARILA2% L EF margin for engineering services was 5.05 per cent, a decrease of
EMOAMEB N H -EMETRANTERARAH 0.29 per cent over last year. And the profit for power plant
HEMEMABD R2003F ¥ F AN E B accessories and parts were Rmb26.06 million. The profit margin for
BRIE MBARERMEHEB KB LA SMEMTES power plant accessories and parts were 11.60 per cent, a decrease
EmttiERERZ- of 14.55 per cent over last year. The profit for the AC/DC motors
and other product and service was Rmb82.33 million. The profit
margin for he AC/DC motors and other product and service was
9.42 per cent, a increase of 0.44 per cent compared to last year.
The main reason for profit margin decrease is that most contracts
for the products sold by the Group in 2004 were signed before the
first half year of 2003, at that time, the contracts were secured at
low prices and the price of raw material continued to grow and
subcontracts were increased.

HEEH EXPENSES DURING THE YEAR

20045 AEERELEREERB AT 568,398 The Group's expenses from operation and administration activities
B & F1809,9628 Lo E A TR A4 during the year of 2004 amounted to Rmb683.98 million, an

3,806E T ZEtIREIRER FEKEEH2,3508 increase of 99.62 million compared to last year. Among which,
TUAEBERIN ERREERTSEAENEMAEE labor cost increased about Rmb38.96 million; preparation value for

BREEZMN1601E T BERRIEMA6ISE T bad debt and price decrease of stock-in-trade was Rmb23.50 million;
expenses for business activities increased about Rmb16.01 million
due to the enhancement of administration and marketing. The
medical insurance increased about Rmb6.15 million.

MEXH FINANCE COSTS

2004 REBBENEBERLTE T L EFH During the period under review, the Group’s finance cost amounted

P6364B T FERAEEBRET AP REE to 47.89 million, a decrease of 63.64 million over last year. This
FREERR Do was because the Group paid back most short-term loans, which

decreased the number of loans.

5
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EERRERERER FUNDING AND BORROWINGS

AEBEERERAFTESTIERA-ANRE R The Group's funding for operation and development mainly has

REG BPEFNBITER - AEEZERIRE three resources, they are shareholder capital, customer loans and
EREA ML REREIN BER—RHEETS bank borrowings. The borrowings of the Group will be arranged
FRAEDAER BEBRERREUENALHA according to specific projects. Except for those special situations,
DR AE - BRIMEARE]ERBERERKE the loans will be separately conducted by subsidiaries under the
FEN AEELEEERAM BERETBANHEE Group. However, the Group must approve the capital investment

BeEF -HZE2004F128318 AEEFTHER borrowings in advance. With the dramatic increase of contracts
BFER227,3668 TL(2003F 12A31H A262,4748 and prepayment, the Group has compensated for most loads for
L) BREERATENEEZHERTREARK operating funds. As at 31st December, 2004, the total sums of the
RUHRITRENER-Hbh - BR—FANEEZER Company borrowings are Rmb2,273.66 million (that at 31st

i — i —

A78,4208 0 L EWEM22,2428 70 REAR =K December, 2003 was Rmb2,624.74 million). The Group's borrowings

WEERRFAIRER L6 6ETERBER —F are loans from various commercial banks and the State’s policy
NEBMB AR —FREEZEKR148,9468 banks with interest rates stipulated by the state. Among which the
T L ERIR 57,3508 T Group's borrowings due within one year were Rmb784.20 million,

an increase of Rmb222.42 million compared to the beginning of
the year. The reason is that Rmb660 million loans for The Three
Gorges Reconstruction and Iran projects would be due within one
year. The Group's borrowings due after one year were Rmb1,489.46
million, a decrease of Rmb573.50 million compared to the beginning
of the year.

ERXRESRE DEPOSITS AND CASH INFLOW

R2004F 12A31B AEERTEREE S As at 31st December, 2004, the bank deposits and cash of the
/559,5698 7T L FHIIE IN148,334B L F - K Group amounted to Rmb5,595.69 million, an increase of 1,483.34
SEKEEBRERAFERT20,4638 7T(2003F million over the beginning of the year. During the year, the net
R4572018B7L) BEEB R RLFE cash used by operating activities amounted to Rmb7,204.63 million
540,8708 70(2003F A 142,4888 1) R B ¥ 75 (the sum in 2003 was Rmb4,572.01 million). The net cash from
ZHe R FEE A569,8348 TT(20034F 526,369 financing activities amounted to Rmb408.70 million (the sum in
L) ASEREEBRENATERAN TERF 2003 was Rmb1,424.88 million) and the net cash used by investment
METE] B RSN B E FE AT B activities was Rmb5,698.34 million (the sum in 2003 is Rmb263.69

million). The reason that the Group's inflow sum of cash for

operating activities is big is because of the increasing of new

contracts and prepayment.
EELBREHER CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND ITS CHANGES

FR2004F12A318 AEBEEEHEA3,101,520 As at 31st December, 2004, the total assets of the Group amounted
BT L E A M1,350, 1468 EF RBEER to Rmb31,015.20 million, an increase of Rmb13,501.46 million
2,480,158 T M EELERNT.96% : FERBEE compared to the beginning of the year. Among which, the total
621395870 (h & EBE20.04% current assets were Rmb24,801.25 million, representing 79.96 per

cent of the total assets. The total non-current assets were

Rmb6,213.95 million, representing 20.04 per cent of the total

assets.
__ Ny
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=L LIABILITIES

20045124318 - AEE B RH(ER2,736,159 As at 31st December, 2004, the Group's liabilities totaled
B WFEEN,336,9068 1 £ K95.54% ° Rmb27,361.59 million, an increase of Rmb13,369.06 million and
FeREBAERER2271578E T HEBREN 95.54 per cent compared to the beginning of the year. Among
83.02% ' HWEWE13570% : LB A EHES which, the total current liabilities were Rmb22,715.78 million,
464,581 BT HEEHEER16.98% L FME representing 83.02 per cent of the total liabilities, an increase of
K6.68%°12004F 12 A3 AEENEERRR 135.70 per cent over the beginning of the year. The non-current

£88.22% ° AEB B EXEEE M RERE KK liabilities were Rmb4,645.81 million, representing 16.98 per cent
FON IR PG of the total liabilities, an increase of 6.68 per cent over the

beginning of the year. At 31st December, 2004, the Group's current
liability ratio is 88.22 per cent. The reason for the dramatic
increasing is the increase of prepayment.

e £ SHAREHOLDER'S FUND

R2004F 12A3MA ARARRERZRBLE As at 31st December, 2004, the shareholder's fund of the Company

#311,3068 70 L FE L N10,8048 L B EE totaled Rmb3,113.06 million, an increase of Rmb108.04 million over

FERB262T2004F AR A FEE Kz X the beginning of the year. The net assets per share were Rmb2.62.

£3.84% th EEER2.05EE B In 2004, the Company’s assets-income ratio was 3.84 per cent, an
increase of 2.05 per cent compared with that of last year.

EXREEELER GEARING RATIO

R2004F 128318 AEBHERTFL X (3ER As at 31st December, 2004, The Group's gearing ratio (non-current
HEBHRREREHE) 51491, FFA1.45:1. liabilities/total shareholders’ fund) was 1.49:1, as compared to that
of 1.45:1 of last year.

HEEEREH CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND MORTGAGE ASSET

2004F AEBREERRFAMEEZXAE In 2004, there was no any contingent liabilities arising from

E-12004F 128310 AEBEH233ELHIME outstanding litigation of the Group. As at 31st December, 2004,

R-ER207ETEABIER B 55 F4,8188 the Group’s external guarantee was Rmb233 million, among which

TEEERARNTHESER Rmb207 million was related to contracting projects. In addition,
of pledge assets with net book value of Rmb48.48 million were
used for bank borrowings for working capital.

5
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BEXRIRFBEARERER CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND IMPORTANT INVESTMENT

20045 REERRERER ﬂ&mEﬁZLE@éﬁﬁﬁ In the year of 2004, the Group invested Rmb720.53 million for
Sii@ﬁﬁz’ﬁéﬂz 0S3BL BARESER1.68ET basic construction and technology renovation and used Rmb168
TREEFAEE MR W & KB IR }Mtffﬁ million from the listing proceeds. The main projects were 9FA heavy
F*Dﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁfiuuﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬂ’]ﬁ$@ ST E duty gas turbine, large circulated fluidized bed boiler and heat
BB AEMERIBE —HAKRE30,7588 T & recovery boiler. The first stage investment in Seaside Workshop
RETEESRE28,2588 T BI2004FF K B Construction project of QHD was Rmb307.58 million, among which
RETTRIRE28349B T BEKE MEABI R the investment in fixed assets were Rmb282.58 million. By the end
REFRER2004F4RRAGER 2EHTKAM of 2004, the accumulated investment was up to Rmb283.49 million.
BHBERSAMEA S E 18O E R The assembly factory and test station of heavy-duty gas turbine
BRMK ZE AETRABEGEARECAEE and relevant facilities were put into operation in April, 2004.
MHNERETER ReaASBMNTEMUNES Altogether 6 units were assembled and 5 units were tested within
BN RIARBMRIWEIER BIRE 24,7508 B this year. The accomplishment of Seaside Workshop Construction
RETEERE21,9008T ERkEE 11,3968 project of QHD will lay a foundation for the development of heavy-
7T 'K’WJE RMCRIAERETE B 418 & 10,7008 duty gas turbine, nuclear power, 1000MW class ultra super-critical
HAETEEERES 3008 L BEKIRET,818 product and the other large product and promote the Company's
7_5 BEDRIVHRARA- industry status and competitive capability. In addition, the
investment in large gas turbine projects was Rmb247.50 million,
among which the fixed asset investment was Rmb219 million, the
completed investment was Rmb113.96 million; the investment on
large circulated fluidized bed boiler renovation is Rmb107 million
including the fixed asset investment of Rmb83 million, the
completed investment was Rmb78.18 million. The workshop was

completed and has been put into operation.

BE = % 8 /& b2 & 48 B8 ¥k EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
RELATED HEDGES

AEERBHHINEFR R20045F12A318 K The Group has certain amount of deposits that are in foreign
SENEFTRITE ARK67,5558 L - AEE LA currencies. As at 31st December, 2004, the amount of the Group's
RN EE 2 %% FrELRR - FAXEEED deposits in foreign currencies was Rmb675.55 million after
ZRHPERTESS 9\\%?52?E’JEIEKHXJT/EPTE conversion. The export business of the Group is also settled in
HE DA 368 B R % B /= B foreign currencies and there is exchange risk. In 2004, the Group
entrusted the Bank of China to adopt hedging measures for part of
the Japanese yen to avoid exposure to fluctuation in exchange.

ERETER USE OF LISTING PROCEEDS
20045 KARILEREEES1.68E T AR The Group used a total of Rmb168 million from its listing proceed
0 Eu R IEE for Workshop Construction project of QHD.

BZE2004F12A318 - AREC 2T ERHRES As at 31st December, 2004, the Group used a total of Rmb1 billion
BEW10BT RBRBEN24ETEFHRRRIT from its listing proceedings and the remaining balance of Rmb240
BARLEOEMBERRECRMZUERR - million of listing proceeds was deposits in the bank and it will be

used in Workshop Construction project of QHD and other

technology renovation projects.
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RE&E:TE INVESTMENT PLAN

2005F A EHEIRENCARTEERNLED In the year of 2005, in order to upgrade products and improve
HEMRRIE R BERIEE AR RRERIS core competition capability, the Group are planning to invest
B e ERARMRIERISIERRMBUEER Rmb640 million in super-critical project, large gas turbine
REHKEE AR M ERPRERS(CRERIER technology transfer project, Workshop Construction project of QHD,
o MEEERARAR BRRZOBFE ) R combined cycle HRSG technology renovation and technology transfer
AEBOBERT D ARRE BREERERE and technology transfer and renovation of large pumped storage

BREEEN WIN ERREEENERNTISE units projects. At the same time, the Group will buy some key

K ARAFERERRZESHBA-HIR & equipment to solve the bottleneck problems and to enlarge

RECRABBTEREREAABR R producing capability. In addition, facing great potential demand of
nuclear power market, the Group is planning to begin the second
stage of Workshop Construction project of QHD. The construction
capitals are planned to be solved by financing method such as load
from bank.

EIREM STAFF AND REMUNERATION

R2004512A318 RS BEHEBEEME 17300 As at 31st December, 2004, the Group's total number of staff was

AN EHMAE RS 27E T AR EXRREAE 17300. The annual remuneration was Rmb527 million. The Group
ARFRBIEI R BB E A RIE ) F S i adopted various measures such as on-job-training, training in

BT REEIXRE BIBAMEHASTER EH universities and multinational companies to improve their qualities.

o2 FEIISOISAR-EITRATEHE N Altogether 8618 staff has been trained. As for remuneration, the

ER LEINEARREATNBEENEAE Group adopted post salary system, which enhanced check-up,

KRB FTENERE MRARER- effectively combined the staff's individual goal with the Company'’s
target, brought all positive factors into play and speeded up the
development of the Company.

B2 PROSPECT

0050 ARG ERRERR LEEEHE—TH In 2005, the Group will develop rapidly. According to outer
ERPFENDRE —FETELRLCESERR environment, China economy will continue to grow fast. The further
BREER BRRERILETIEEMMANIRE implement of development policy of “To Thrive the Northeast Old
SHEREZNEREBEE-— SRR RARIRE Industry Base” and “To Thrive Equipment Manufacture Industry”
TREFNINDPRR-Z—HE BERR B RAEN will provide a sound outer environment for the Company. On the
Mg SEMFEEREMHBETRER UKD other hand, with the government'’s strengthening on macrostructure,
B ABE - REFARENRNBNERBKAT the power generation equipment market will slow down and the
GERMNER MHEBRFHBAIL-REERNIR high-tech products featuring in large capability, high efficiency and
F 0BT EFIEARERSRAFHNER low pollution will be the key point for market development and
RRTEENRE BRAKALENEEEKERE the market competition is more and more intensified. According to
KEZGEREN Rl RAIERMAMERE & the Group itself, over Rmb70 billion on-hand contracts provide
AT EIE: guarantee for the Group's future development. However the
manufacture task brings pressure for manufacture system. The
Group will adopt efficient method to ensure quality and delivery
schedule. Especially, the Group will pay attention to the following
work:

5
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—BUNZ2EENARAEHN REE RXE KRR First, contracts fulfillment is the Company's key point. At the same
B B REOTSEE-AEERRETSVEE time it will ensure quality, delivery and service, and set up good
{ERIE B ER - KRBT et 81 HEM a8 1) T g market reputation. According to market situation and project
HERBTE BRARMBEEREEST K 2HN situation, the Group will make plan in time, distribute resource
FRE-BHFENLEESREEZNETHERE BB reasonably, devote effort to manufacture and organization work,
RNEEBREERKANRE BREAXENT and solve the conflict between raw material supply and market
ZoREMFRREIE MEREENSESTEER A demand. Consisting on improving quality guarantee system, the
AZH - BELRRNDEEERE D MAEIMERE Group will try to use good quality to reduce cost and meet contract

Ol MRS BBENTE B2 REFREH delivery schedule. The Group will take actions creatively, distribute
2H BROBEmERAIERE- BBANEZE N inner resource scientifically and exert manufacture capability inside
SMBIE TERR L HBLEERABER B the Company. The Group will increase subcontractors, strengthen
EEEN RMERMEHER. control on the subcontractors’ plan, quality and delivery schedule

and make sure that the subcontracted products are under control.
By way of inner exploration and outside cooperation, the Group
will complete modernization and socialization manufacturing and
organization system.

TRABRELRRER ERESHBWERTE Second, regarding leading technology as the Company's target.
MRE REAFBEMEEL N -AEE—AHEHMR With consolidating high-tech product platform, the Company will
ERESE N RIS 1 IR 5 E A & E 473 I A improve its independent R&D capability. At the same time, the
NI HE R 1T B IR o B B i o 1% F A1 600MW- Company will broaden its cooperation with multinational companies
1000MW B B g SR 48 B AT S| THE- 5 — H 4 and speed up its steps on technology inducement in order to make
BEFRMSEME FRIFTELE R RA IR full use of foreign advanced technologies. The Group will pay more
1 T B A 1R IR 48 - 600MW-1000MWER 18 g 57 14 attention to technology inducement on nuclear power and ultra
78 600MWE B R AR KB K Z Rt 48 - KAV TR super critical steam turbine with 600MW to 1000MW. Consisting
RE R R IE S S E R A B - R 81T - (23 with the strategy of combining the technology inducement and

FEERNARRR - TRBBRTREER SRR independent renovation, the Company will strengthen on
B2 A e EREARRIT R ERANE technological understanding, absorption and renovation in field of
ZURBAFBIFMERN REGLBEFMN- gas turbine combined cycle units, ultra super critical, 600MW super

critical units, large scale pumped storage units and circled fluidized
bed boiler units and thus to push forwards product’'s upgrade.
Cooperating with universities and research institutes in all
directions, the Company will set up its new scientific research and
development system in order to improve the Company's independent
R&D capability and main competition capability.

=
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CRURFEMERAER MATERENE B Third, regarding high-tech products as work core. The Company
NAARERRETER 20055 AEBEEEX will strengthen on market development to lay foundation for its

KE - HKEL 600MWEE R BHBER. continuous development. In the year of 2005, the Company will
1000MWiEB B ER R A AR A IR AT HEE K make full preparation of nuclear power plant biding work on base

A E My EEANREEETE UEIRFAL of consolidating large hydro power units, pumped storage units,
EREEERELEERE RUEERAEBREE 600MW super critical units, ultra super critical, 1000MW ultra super
HREEB LERARIAFERRE BRGTHE K critical units and large scale combined cycle units. Also the Company
HMARBNEEERRERNTSRE EEHN will speed up on constructing Qinhuangdao nuclear power

MERERE -MANBERBUHIREXBEE AL manufacture workshop in order to make preparation on energy
MEIRTISRENE BRER BATSEHNE source restructure. Basing itself on the Company's continuous
BEAR o development, the Company will take positive actions on market

development in field of desulphurization, deNOx and wind energy
power products etc. and tap new sources of economic growth. The
Company will strengthen on international market development
mainly in field of general contract for international power plant
engineer project and establish a pattern that the international
market and domestic market compensate mutually.

MENRSEMENERRER FAHE BERA Forth, regarding product's profit margin as the core of the
RER RRELEUZ]EY REEBE KT -AB Company's development. The Company will promote its
AR ERRBREEHIRERN BBNERET management capability by way of “Reduce Cost And Improve

RRZEHIEE BERERS BREZHEEER. Economic Profit”. The Company will strictly control sourcing cost
MBREBR - MREERLNESR HE2LRANESE by way of tendering and concentralized sourcing and reduce
IHm—ER-RREEARREEESMIE manufacture cost by way of value man-hour reasonably and control
BEEM RAEXXARA BURARERLZNE quality accident. Also it will strictly control management cost and
BFE ReEIEXRENERKT. financial cost. The Company will speed up to establish the financial

settlement center to unite the whole Company’s management.
Pushing forwards IT work, taking efficiency as principle, the
Company will establish information platform for share resource and
improve work efficiency and management level.

ARNBVARCEFERT R ZRVIERDA Five, regarding set up modern company as the Company’s
KR DRBRSE N TEOR (L E BB R EBRE orientation. The Company will focus on its energy and competitive
SRMR 2RERINMECENLR SERFE capability and deepen its reform. Researching on restructure of
BRB-BEMHTEIBNG R IE BHE business process, the Company will renovate the Company’s

XBER\HR-EHNESE TERIMAL & business process in reference to experience of advanced companies
EEBATNEE ER ZRNABKE E58 inside and outside of China. Also the Company will continue to
AT RSB o separate the supplementary business from main business and focus

on main business. Consisting with the policy of reforms for three
systems, the Company will perfect training, selecting, value and
encourage system for technical and managing talents, which will
make talented people show themselves.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

BEE DIRECTORS
HBITES Executive directors
RELE BAESTH BLEM s RS HEMBE Mr. Geng Lei, 57, senior economist and with a master degree,

BAEARARREEELAEER EZER UL secretary of the Communist Party Committee and chairman of the
ER—NANENMAREER ARERKREL Company and HPEGC. Mr. Geng joined HPEGC in 1968 and has
EREERSR BEL2U -RAELCEARER been director, secretary of the Communist Party Committee of the
MEBMEZMAZEE BEECERE — AN former Boiler Works. He began to act as the executive director of
FTARERARHTEZRASERERAES the Company, chairman and general manager of the Boiler Company
RREEBERALAIRBEBERE - —NEF of the Group and deputy general manager of the Company in
NAERERERRBZELKAESTRIARA October 1994. He has been the secretary of the Communist Party
ERER RETRAERRARRESR —ANANE Committee and vice chairman of HPEGC since August 1997 and in
T-AERESBERAESR —TTTF—AF October 1997, he was appointed vice chairman of the Company.
ARRESR - MAERBEARAEIERER He began to act as chairman of HPEGC in November 1999 and in
FE 28 o January 2000, he was appointed as chairman. Mr. Geng was
appointed by Harbin Institute of Technology as a professor.

TEEELE BFELeR BELEN SR ITREME Mr. Gong Jing-kun, 46, senior economist and with a master degree,
B RAARARESRARESERFAIESR now is vice chairman and general manager of HPEGC and vice

RBCB-BRE-NN\ZFEERNEGHRESNR chairman of the Company. Mr. Gong graduated from Shenyang
REMAREEE -EHER DEEBRETEK Institute of Machinery and Electronics in 1982 and joined HPEGC

BEREL BEIBA-ZAEEERERREH at the same year. Later on, he studied in Shanghai Fu Dan University
WEERRIER FEFBR KESHMENAR majoring economic management and was conferred master degree.

REETHATIELCIBE JELBEEK— N Mr. Gong has been vice manager of production department,
NMNFRAEREEBMBLE -MRESREERD manager of hydropower workshop in former Harbin Electric
ANMMBEERRNDERAREER ZTTTF Machinery Works and general manager assistant and vice general
NAERESELARESRFLLE WNAER manager of Electric Machinery Company of HPEGC. Mr. Gong was
NAEIEE R appointed as chairman of Archeng Relay Group Company and

Archeng Relay Company Limited in 1999, In August 2000, he was
appointed vice chairman and general manager of HPEGC and in
September 2000, Mr. Gong was appointed vice chairman of the
Company.
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HRFLE RE48m BL20 S REEME Mr. Zhao Ke-fei, 48, senior economist, general manager and vice
BREARANESRRELERRESELT chairman of the Company and vice chairman of HPEGC. Mr. Zhao
BEER BEE-NNZFEERRILERHER graduated from Northeast Heavy Machinery Institute in 1982 and
B ER-NANEERERGRELIERZER began his master course in the Management College of Harbin
Bhr - BET M HEER NN\ ZFEMARESR Institute of Technology in 1987. He joined HPEGC in 1982. He was
B2 AAEEREEBIIZM BELAH D the engineer, vice chief of Organization Department and vice
R AREERIBEABRRSERS — WL _FIR director of turbine-generator workshop of the former Electrical
EXEEZABIT R —NNNFEAEEER Machinery Works. He began to act as head of Organization
RARRAELD —MNAFTZAERHELK Department of HPEGC in 1992 and vice secretary of the Communist
B —AAtENREREEEARES AFTA Party Committee, managing deputy general manager of the Electrical
EEARNTES BEE-—NWANF+—RAER Machinery Company in 1994 and in December 1995, respectively.

BEEELNAREER —EETE-AAEERAAAE He was appointed director of HPEGC and general manager of the
EER-BEALRWEARRAEIZEAR BREL Company in August and October 1997 respectively. In November
BREREHK- 1999, he was appointed as vice chairman of HPEGC and in January

2000 he was appointed as vice chairman. Mr. Zhao was appointed
by Harbin Institute of Technology and Harbin Engineering University
as a professor.

BEBEE BENR REEF SREEME Mr. Duan Hong-yi, 41, senior accountant and with a bachelor
BRIREEEAREBLE-BEE-NNZF degree and deputy general manager of HPEGC. Mr. Duan graduated
EENERBERUESRERERE RAFMAR from Harbin Electrical Machinery College majoring in mechanics in
EEE-CERNEERAERERGATEE &l 1982 and joined in HPEGC at the same year. Mr. Duan has been a
BRERG - REE-NNANEL2NREEERN comprehensive planner and vice manager of planning department
MARRREZRTR LM IE —ANAFRERE of former Boiler Works of HPEGC. He joined in the reorganisation
EARAF I BESBR FR A0 LLTEAR of HPEGC as share-holding Company and listing of the Company’s
AEEBRARES BIALERAEES HE share in 1994. He has been vice manager and manager of financing

BRABEERENE —STTF\AAEIRER department, vice chief accountant of the Company and supervisor,
EARBARE - REGAER _TT_F=-AF_ deputy general manager of Turbine Company of HPEGC and vice

TE-F-AEHPRERPEFHHEINEE- chairman of Harbin Power Technology & Trade Incorporation of
HPEGC since 1995. He was appointed as deputy general manager
of HPEGC in August 2000. From March 2002 to January 2003, Mr.
Duan studied at Young Cadre Training Class of CPC Central School.

BHREAE REBR ITHEREL sRIE Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, 43, senior engineer, Master of Business
M REARARTES BIALE -BEE—NN Administration, deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Shang
“HEEERRBBIEREARKERX REMA was a graduate in turbine from Harbin Institute of Technology and
KREEE YEAREFRSHEMETHEHIR joined HPEGC in the same year. He was assistant section head,
R BFR BIBEEM BEATEMSEE - —N deputy head of the Turbine Research Institute, vice chief economist
ANE+RAERERAGKARRIAKLE-— AN and vice chief engineer of the Turbine Company of the Group. In
NET—RAREEAGKARNESREBLE. February 1998, he was appointed as deputy general manager of

CERTFENAGEARRHTES ZTTF the Turbine Company of the Group and in November 1999, chairman

AERD A G RS- and general manager of the Turbine Company. In February 2002,
Mr. Shang was appointed as deputy general manager of the
Company.
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REZELRE BRFLF BIEU SR IEME Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, 42, senior engineer, with doctor degree,
B REAARANTEERAEEERRAESR chairman and general manager of the Electrical Machinery Company
RBEE-REE—NNANFREREEKRZKF of the Group. Mr. Wu graduated from Qinghua University majoring
BNEX BELTEM RAEMAREER -ZHR hydropower and was conferred master degree in 1988 and joined
EEERARIASHIARMKREERFE 8T in HPEGC in the same year. Mr. Wu was deputy director of turbine
R KENBEABR BRAFAZBIRMFERR department and deputy head of Electrical Machinery Institute,
AHEHRERB —ANNFREREEERD deputy manager of hydropower factory, deputy chief engineer and

AalRgE —TTTFTARESREBLE - vice manager of product design department of Electrical Machinery
ZETFNAERRARTER RELE-ZTTC Company of the Group. Mr. Wu has been the deputy general
FRBFEREFLE - manager of Electrical Machinery Company since 1999. In October

2000, Mr. Wu was appointed chairman and general manager of
Electrical Machinery Company.

FHTES Non-executive directors
TRFREL BFE745 afh IRMEE T L— Dr. Li Gen-shen, 74, senior engineer. Dr. Li graduated from the
NA—FEERERBAEHNEE —AAZ Communication University of Shanghai in 1951 majoring in

FE-NRAAERAFHENNERRED NER mechanical engineering. Between 1952 and 1956. Dr. Li was
RERBEERB AL BET A -AFMAR engaged in the research of acrothermodynamics of turbomachinery
EEE CDAERGSERAIREMEI AR — AR in the Moscow Institute of Power Technology in the former Soviet
—_FREAMBELAERE=HRMERFK: Union, and was awarded a doctorate degree. In the same year, Dr.
ERREIEMERE - — L\ DLFREEETH Li joined HPEGC as assistant chief designer of the former Turbine
RETHZAERRRAEANZE SR - PRE Works. In 1962, he was transferred to the Research Centre No. 3
B REIEAREZCRIFESERB-THLEN of the Research Institute No. 7 of the State Defense Department
—NMNEFE-ANEFERRARREERE AT and acted as deputy director, director and chief engineer. Since
EER—NNEFNARERRRIFFRTES 1985, Dr. Li has been the deputy secretary of Heilongjiang Provincial
Party Committee, first secretary of Harbin Municipal Party
Committee, a member of the Party Central Committee, and deputy
head of Heilongjiang Provincial People’s Congress. During this
period, he was also a professor at the Harbin Institute of Technology
and senior advisor to HPEGC. He began to act as chairman of HPEGC
in March 1994 and chairman of the Company and HPEGC in October
1994,

REREE RETSH PRIEREKE - SRITE Mr. Liang Wei-yan, 75, an academic of the Chinese Academy of
MBE-REE-NE-—FEERREILFAEE Engineering, senior engineer. Mr. Liang graduated from the
BZ REMARERE -CEREEREXRBER Electrical Engineering Facility of Tianjin Beiyang University in 1951
BT BATEMBRIENMR BIBRRATIR and joined HPEGC in the same year. He was deputy workshop

MEBK - —NWNANFEREEELRLTELM: — manager, vice chief technician, head of Technical Process
MNZFRAREEELAIEKES SHEES Department, vice director and chief engineer of the former Electrical

FEFHERIRZEeNFEEIRNEGEH Machinery Works. In 1988, Mr. Liang acted as the Group's chief

BE REMIES=REERAZRITESHSE. engineer and since 1992 he has been executive director and director

—“NANEFRERRBERTES- of the Consultative Committee of HPEGC, council member of PRC
Society of Electrical Engineering and the PRC Society of Electrical
Engineering Technology and vice director of the Three Gorges
Project Equipment Office under the Ministry of Machinery.
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BYEE Independent directors

BEREE RFENR REALRBIEENF Mr. Zhou Dao-jiong, 71, a member of Finance And Economic
ERTAEEeREER PEHREERRESE R Committee of People’'s Congress of China, chairman of Supervisory
TERREE PEMELESERMA LRAE. Committee of China Construction Bank, chairman of TaoXing Zhi
FEARKE FEHERE RILMERE FE Fund of China, emeritus chairman of Investment Committee of
HEARERBIBRERB - AEE—NLRATELN China; advisor to Society of Finance China and Society of Market
I EREZREVHEERR A ARBFWE Economics of China and professor in Beijing University, People’s
R PEESBTIR PERERTESR BB University of China, Central South Economics And Finance University
REFZEHREFTE BRAERTATRRTE and Northeast Economics And Finance University. Mr. Zhou joined
BHREEERZEGIRERS- in work in 1950 and has been the head of Finance Department of
An Hui provincial government and secretary-general of provincial
government, president of China Construction Bank and China
Investment Bank, deputy executive directors of Security Committee
of State Council, deputy president of State Development Bank, and
Chairman of Security Supervisory & Management Committee of
China. Mr. Zhou is now a deputy of National People’s Congress.

HEEXRE RETR 2R TRMERE RERE Mr. Du Xing-you, 75, senior engineer, secretary-general of the
ERTIRZgNER TR NIRZCEEER. China Society of Electrical Engineering, vice chairman of the PRC
HEE-—NT-_FEFRLBRABERBERZR-Z Society of Engineering Dynamics. Mr. Du graduated from Shanghai
ERMNETEREIEM RNEXRETEME Tongji University in 1952 majoring in electrical machinery studies.
B —NE\FEKFENBREAER LT He was the chief engineer of Xuzhou Jiawang Power Plant and
M ARERLE —NN\N\FREERBREARAR: chief engineer of Xuzhou Electricity Bureau. In 1978, Mr. Du was
—“AN—FRAFRENCEBASERKES H appointed as the director and chief engineer of Technology Division
HERTIEZENERSRB -HLE-—NNEE of the Ministry of Hydraulic Power. He was appointed as the director
REANRIBLES of Technology Division under the Ministry of Energy in 1988. In
1991, he began to act as the council member of the PRC Electricity
Enterprises Association and secretary-general of the PRC Society of
Electrical Engineering. Mr. Du was appointed independent director
of the Company in 1997.

TESZLT BF45m BB KREBHE - RE Ms. Ding Xue-mei, 45, doctor degree and professor and deputy
RBELEREMRAERZBEK R - THELT AN executive director of Graduate Student College of Harbin Institute
NAFEERRBEIXERS BISBELEM — Of Technology. Dr. Ding graduated from Harbin Institute of
AN—FHETBRRBBIZEANERE — AR Technology in 1986 and was conferred master degree. In 1991,
FEZRIBEL 20 BRZREFE LR BHH she studied in Lausanne Federal Institute of Industry in Swiss. She
TE-TEISAGRERRELIEAZIHE H engaged in research work in this institute after she was conferred
R ETHEEBMURAREREIERER Bl RS doctor degree in 1995. Dr. Ding has been appointed as assistant
B —WNN\FREFKE KT B LRFET professor, professor, tutor for doctoral candidates in Harbin Institute
EfRERRREEERTER RBETRHE of Technology, head of training department of Graduate Student
FREBH- College and deputy director of Guatuate Student College. She was
appointed as executive deputy director in 1998. Dr. Ding is now
the executive chairman of Joint Conference for Directors of
Graduate Student College of China and vice chairman of Harbin
Science & Technology Association.
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ES SUPERVISORS
BRRKRES Supervisors representing shareholders

BRELLE RFES8m R TIZMBE RERE Mr. Lang En-qi, 58, senior engineer, director, assistant secretary
EERARES EZRRIER LEELRALAES of the Communist Party Committee and secretary of the disciplinary
eFF EZRER LEECLRALAESEE committee of HPEGC and chairman of the supervisory committee,
B ERAER LEER-BEE-NANFEE assistant secretary of the Communist Party Committee and secretary
REREMZELEER RFMAREEE - BER of the disciplinary committee of the Company. Mr. Lang graduated
SERARKEREIE BREZAGHHR HE from Harbin Aviation Industry School in 1968 and joined HPEGC in

BRIENALR BBR EZRIECERG— the same year. He has been workshop chief, head of Organization
ANRFERESERAEERFLELAIRKE. Department of the former Turbine Works, manager of Turbine
—“ANAFTZAEAEEAREAR R BRIEL Auxiliaries Company, vice director and assistant secretary of the
Be—ANANFE+—AERESEEARES EZE Communist Party Committee of the Turbine Company. He was
ERLERELURARAIERRIERNLZER appointed as general manager of HTC Industrial Development
e L WNET L= Company of the Group in 1994. He began to act as the managing

deputy general manager of the Turbine Company of the Group in
December 1995. In November 1999, he was appointed as director,
assistant secretary of the Communist Party Committee, secretary of
the disciplinary committee of HPEGC and assistant secretary of the
Communist Party Committee and secretary of the disciplinary
committee of the Company. In January 2000, he was appointed as
chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company.

BREE RFQR BRESE SRITIZMB Mr. Yang Xu, 42, master degree, senior engineer, vice director of
BREASEREARCXERERRBARR 5 enterprise management and development department of Boiler
RE-NNARERERERIERE AEMAR Company of the Group. Mr. Yang graduated from Jilin Industry

EEE CAXRERRBELRACERLCER AR University in 1986 and joined HPEGC in the same year. He has
BEERNENE BR CEEBEREREREE been enterprise management staff in the enterprise management
ERY —_STTFACE(ERERERE R department, secretary of President’s office, assistant director of

enterprise management and development department of the Boiler
Company. In 2002, he was appointed as vice director of enterprise
management and development department.

BIRKRES Supervisors representing staff and workers

HRNEE REBH AZEFE S RGHABE Mr. Hu Chang-fu, 43, university graduate, senior accountant,
B REAEEAGEARRHERR - AEE—N director of auditing department of Turbine Company. Mr. Hu joined
NEFMARESE SERNKERAHRER S HPEGC in 1985, he worked for accounting department and general
B BHwE BRERAEEREA AR administration office of the former Harbin Turbine Works. He has

FAMBR AEEA R ARSI RAIERERS been head of accounting and planning department of HTC Industrial

“NWNtFEBTERR. Development Company and vice director of auditing department of
Turbine Company. In 1997, he was appointed director of auditing
department.
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EEELt RE4om REBEF R T RME Mrs. Lu Chun-lian, 45, with a bachelor degree, senior engineer
BREARARRERREENASEETHARR and head of coil factory of Electrical Machinery Company of the
BoBEER EXT - NN\ ZF2ERNKAEET Group. Mrs. Lu graduated from Harbin Electronics College in 1982
B AFEMAREEE -CEREEEHAFARE and joined in the Group. She has been an engineer and deputy
BRRMBEMBARZE IR 2 FAUAREHR director of Insulation Material Department of Electrical Machinery

RABRBEOBRMEFEERBE - EXL _TT - Research Institute and director of technology department of coil
FREBSHL BB S BH K- factory of Electrical Machinery Company of the Group. She was

appointed as general manager of coil factory of Electrical Machinery
Company in 2002 and elected as a deputy of People’s Congress Of
Heilongjiang Province in 1997.

BIUEE Independent Supervisors

FREEE RFMR REEFE aREFH0 -3 Mr. Li Zhen-hua, 44, with bachelor degree and senior auditor and

R A MEET G RAERBEREE A registered accountant, registered asset evaluator and chairman of
EBMNRBETREETHERAAESFR-F Harbin Zhong Sheng Asset Evaluation Company Limited. Mr. Li
FE-NELE2NTHE SERBETENRE jointed in work in 1977. He has been a office staff and deputy
ERE BRERNRRET B EBATRER- manager of Harbin Audit Bureau and director of Harbin Auditing
FEERAREIAGMEHMHeEKES + Affair Institute. Mr. Li is the executive director of Registered
HEAEgE8- Accountant Association of Heilongjing Province and a member of

Society Of Auditor of China.

BREBAE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

phEmwEE RESS FARKASR IR REX Mr. Yao Jin-long, 58, senior engineer (professor), deputy general
AAAIBEE - EE—NANFEEREGREIE manager of the Company. Mr. Yao graduated from Hefei Institute
REMRREZE RAFEMAREEE - ZELALHE of Technology majoring in mechanical manufacturing in 1968 and
MmERRNE SHAFRELR MREIBEFR joined HPEGC in the same year. He was technician, vice chief of
Bo—MNEFARESERMEXAZBATR personnel department and assistant director of the former Boiler
BB - NWAAFTZRARAEASEREAFRR Works of the Group. In 1994, Mr. Yao was appointed as general
KERFBRIGLESEB —ANWAF+—RAE manager of HBC Industrial Development Company of the Group.
ARRRIGRE He began to act as deputy general manager and managing deputy
general manager of the Boiler Company in December 1995. In
November 1999, he was appointed deputy general manager of the
Company.
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REEAE REBR IHERELT aRIEM Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, 43 senior engineer, master of business
B RAERAREBLE - REE-N/\NFEE administration, deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang
REBEEIZR AEMARESE - ZEAEE graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1984
RMEREERIEM BEZHAZNERE and joined the Group in the same year. He had been engineer of
AHBERE - REA-NANF2NBEERR the former Boiler Works, secretary and assistant director of the
BRARRRBETE LTI —ANAEE+— Communist Party Committee office of the Works. Mr. Zhang
AREGEAASERBERAREERAZREA: participated in the reorganization of the Group and share issuing
FERBERRCEERRER BiEARERR and listing of the Company in 1994. Since November 1994, he had
ERB-—NNNEFAEIREEERAIRAAAE been appointed vice director of the general manager office, vice
ERE HEIIR —ANWNEREREEERE director of planning department, director of enterprise
PE-MHEEREERRRMRETERNER administration department and director of auditing department in
AREZRER REER - ZTTTETAREAR the Boiler Company of the Group. In 1998, he was transferred to
EERESEE the Group acting as one member of the Group's and the Company's
standing Communist Party Committee and head of organization
department. In 1999, Mr. Zhang was appointed as secretary of
Communist Party Committee and vice chairman of Acheng Relay
Company Limited, one of the Group’s associated companies. He
has been deputy general manager of the Company since October
2000.

REEE BESHE BIEU aRITEMERE Mr. Sang Hong, 55, senior engineer with a master degree, deputy
BAERRAERARERAEEHNHUBERTES general manager of the Company and chairman of Harbin Power
R BBEEERNARLLEERB -REE-NR Technology & Trade Incorporation under the Group. Mr. Sang began
NEABBIEEERREBIE —Nt=53% to work for Heilongjiang Production and Construction League in
EREFEIAR —NEAFEXRMATTT 1966 and in 1973 he began his study in South China Science and
%%B?ﬁgg}iﬁ' BERMPRZE FEBBH— NN Technology University. After graduating from the university in 1976,
NERARGBEIRAZERZR —ANTF Mr. Sang joined No. 39 research institute of the Electrical Industry
TXVRETSEM -RELLCERBEE FREE
ARBIRLE RISERBERERHER AR
BEESERE - FEE-NMNEEMAREE L&
EAKEPHRERAALE EZR KEEER
MARBREERYE —STTETARAEARRH
gl IR

Ministry. He had been vice director of research office of this
institute. From 1988 to 1990. Mr. Sang was an undergraduate in
the Management College of Harbin Institute of Technology. He had
been deputy general manager of Harbin Electrical Instrument
Company and general manager of Harbin Technology Company
Limited under the Polytech Group. Mr. Sang joined the Group in
1995, he has been appointed general manager and chairman of
Harbin Power Technology & Trade Incorporation of the Group. In
October 2000, he was appointed deputy general manager of the
Company.
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BREXRE BFELF IHEEELT SRBIM Mr. Feng Youquan, 42, master of business administration, senior
B REAQAREIREE - BEE— W\ LFEE engineer, deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Feng
REREEIE2REXREE AEMARERET graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1985
FAEERRERENNE BEER - ETORE majored in electrical engineering, and jointed the Group in the
L HE BEAOBERERE —ANEFELRE same year. He was secretary of the Communist Party committee
BREARERRER LEER 2T —F1+— office, secretary of Youth League of the former Boiler Factory,
AEANREERRRETMERZ BMK (K secretary of the Communist Party committee and manager of Pipe
R —EE=F+-HAARBELREZIE L. Subsidiary under Boiler Factory and manager of Heavy Duty Vessel
Factory. He was the deputy secretary of the Communist Party
committee and manager of Commission for Inspecting Discipline of
Boiler Company in 1997. He was the standing committee and deputy
mayor of the city of Tong Liao in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region in November 2001. He was the deputy secretary of the
Communist Party committee of Harbin Boiler Co., Ltd. at November
2003.

NARE COMPANY SECRETARY

BrRTEE BFELSH AEXL 5 & BEME Mr. Deng Xian-yuan, 45, bachelor of science, senior economist,
B REARAARINEREZTES D RAIRIBLE- company secretary and director of Corporate Administration Office
HEE-NAN—FMAREEE ZRAKERA and Board Secretaries Department of the Company. Mr. Deng joined
BRBRBRECERII TR —AAEEL2 MG the Group in 1981. He had been engaged in enterprise planning in
BEEEROHARARRAREETHELITES: the former Turbine Works of the Group for years. In 1994, he
RETAATRERERAEXRELALANRLE participated in the reorganization of the Group and the Company's
BEF —ANAF=ARERRAEZSWER shares placing and listing. He was appointed as deputy chief of
BEE ARNLE (ESENER) BIEAURR Administration Office of the HTC Industrial Development Company
NAMBELAIESERB -BAEBARLDA LM in October 1994 and in March 1995, he began to act as vice director
K —BEBEARAZEECHARSEBELARGEER of Corporate Administration Office (Board Secretaries Department)
EEEIFMEBENES- of the Company and supervisor of the Boiler Company of the Group.
Since the Company’s listing, Mr. Deng has been responsible for
routine work of the Board, information disclosure and other business
relevant to the listing.
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Report of the Directors

BEEQMAREARR2004F E & ME £2004 The Directors have the pleasure in submitting their 2004 annual
FNANBLEEFELRANTBRE- report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2004.

TEER PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

AR REFENBARIIENESRETRED The Company and its principal subsidiaries are in the field of power
HE - HERTUIRRBER FEANMBRE equipment manufacture, sales and power engineering services which
B #E 150 are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

AEEMBEBHUFEAEM HEF480.99%.2 All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where 80.99%
EEeXBEREPH- of the Group’s turnover is derived from.

BE2004F1N2ANALEFE ASEEREOEE The export sales of the Group for the year ended 31st December,

HR234608ETT HBELEHEN19.01% ~&EE 2004 amounted to US$234.60 million, representing 19.01% of the

MEORFEFETMN FEMME- Group's total turnover for the year. The Group's export markets
mainly include Asian, African and American countries.

(if- NG SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

ARRBEIRTENBRR - RRBEERMERE The Company has four principal subsidiaries. Harbin Electrical
EARFEREKGRERA AREEUNEE Machinery Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales
EHE RREREREREEARTENREEY of hydro generator units and steam turbine units, Harbin Boiler
MENEEREES RRABAREBRERETLA Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales of boilers
FEREEWARBNEERES RAESHT for power stations. Harbin Turbine Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of
RERBEFAARTIENETUBERRABREUF manufacture and sales of steam turbine for power stations and
BREXER- Harbin Power Engineering Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of the turn
key construction of power station projects and complete set of
power stations. Boilers for power stations, steam turbine for power
stations and steam turbine units are the three main equipment of
thermal equipment.

R20045 12318 AARF EMBARFEHR Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,
AERIBHRRMETI5 - 2004 are set our in Note 15 to the financial statements.
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XERIE FINANCIAL RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

AEBEHZE2004F 1278312 FEEEIRNA The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2004
FREVEMNGaBRRT- are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 50 of
the annual report.

EZeREACA_STNEFERB RO ERFLK The Directors recommend the appropriation of profit after taxation

mé/ﬁnﬂ @EZZHT- for 2004 as follows:

1. RIVEERBRLOBEEARK1,1668 . 1, To transfer Rmb11.66 million to the statutory surplus reserve.

2. RIVEEL @& ARK1,1668 . 2. To transfer Rmb11.66 million to the statutory public welfare
fund.

3. EECEEM005F5A13BERERRE 3. The Directors recommend that the dividend for shareholders

%ﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬁx%}f& B-ZZNMEEREFRA who registered on shareholder’ list until 13th May, 2005 is
R¥0.0517m &K EREAREG,0658 Rmb0.051 per share, payment of dividends is totally
JL° amounted to Rmb60.65 million.

EE EE DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

EHESREENHBINAGEHR(ES EEX Details of directors and supervisors are set out in the Section

RRERBAE) o “Director, Supervisors and Senior Management” of the annual
report.
EX EENEAEBABNRAES DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

R2004F12A31H ARAISESFS EERERE As at 31st December, 2004, none of the directors, supervisors and
BAEBBMEEARARE SEFAEEEE (E senior management of the Company had any interest or short
%‘Eﬁ(( %&%f"ﬁﬂﬂﬁ']))%x VEP) mk ) - A AR position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the

k/JEHE(REANE) PEEEATRE case may be) of the Company of any of its associated corporations
(& %&Hﬁfﬂ‘mﬁ@)% XVHNEIREHBAE (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to
ARAIREBEBMR AN ERIEBRND A EFZH be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7
KE (BRBREBE(EFRBERI) ZFEHNRTE and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short position
BRANEEELEE EERGNERABESR which any such director, supervisor or senior management is taken
MEZIAE) SIRE(EFRHEEIKH) E352 or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was
{635 E AL SRR AR D BIR 17 40 8 A 1 A0 4 2 S required to be entered in the Register kept by the Company
B RRBELTRAME+HN(ETRARERE pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which was required to be
ﬂm%“ AR ETA) BN ARG RBBHR notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code
FrE) R SOKE for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Companies as

contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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EX EENREEN DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
REEREFHRARRGNERBEHN ZEEHL There are service contracts between every Director, supervisor and

#2006 6 8208 BIH7 < B itk BASN XE%&W% 1 the Company. The contracts will expire by 20th June, 2006 and
AEEEMKE AR 2 BHEEMEEE RRENR can be terminated without compensation (legal compensation is

Bane- not included). Besides this, there are no existing and suggesting
service contracts between every Directors, supervisor and any of its
subsidiaries

EX EEREERNTIER DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

FRNEEFHEEHEEARARAMBRRAIE L Apart from service contracts, no contract of significance, to which

MEBEEGAPERXEERAER the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director or supervisor of the Company had material interests in
whether directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at
any time during the period.

ESKESHE REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

BE2004512A3MBEZFE - ARRIESERES Details of the salaries and bonuses of the directors or supervisors

MeFRHERRERM BREM 0o of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2004 are set
out in Note 10 to the financial statements.

EEeMENaEg AL FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

EseMeN A8 ATHALRAREERES- The five highest paid personnel of the Company during the year
are all directors and supervisors.

ETRAKKERNE RETIREMEMT BENEFIT SCHEME

ETRARBANIFBIARRNERT B HE Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out in Note 37 to
B3E370 the financial statements.

BEEE FIXED ASSETS

AEEETEENEHFEANAFRIBRKNM Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out
140 in Note 14 to the financial statements.

e RESERVES

R20045F12A318 RARRIAIE D KA EELEER The Company's reserves available for distribution are 62.44 million

)\E?“%% 08T AEBRARAFNNHEE until 31st December, 2004. Movements in the reserves of the Group
BRABNIBERRGERAEREH K during the year are set out in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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BEEE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

AEERENFLHBREANAER(M B The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set

2)—fho out in the Section “Financial Highlights” to the annual report.
ERRAEE R BORROWINGS AND INTEREST COSTS CAPITALISED

ARBRTEFNEMESBHHNAF BRI ER Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set
FHIEE26%028 ° out in Note 26 and 28 to the financial statements.

AREHEAANERIENFSENMLEERARK Interest capitalized by the Group during the year amounted to

544 48 T o Rmb5.444 million in respect of construction-in-progress.
BE HERBERARATZLEHES PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

FARARISHEMNBARMERE HERELE No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities

AIARRIZ EH&ESH has been made by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the period.
BREERE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

BEARARIEEXPEEZE TREXBEREMRT According to the Article of Association of the Company and the

ARAERFEREPIMRARRRZBETR B laws of the PRC, there are no provisions for pre-emptive rights

B requiring the Company to offer new shares to the existing
shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

BAFARBE MAJOR LITIGATION
FARRREEMERNFAERE The Company was not engaged in any major litigation of material

importance during the year.
BEREW MATERIAL CONTRACTS

AREFERAEINERGNFRANEAFR(ER The material contracts of the Group for the year are detailed in the
EmillEoH) —He Section Management Discussion and Analysis of the annual report.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

1. The aggregate amount of purchases during the period
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers represented
12.45% of the Group's total purchases. Among which the
largest supplier is Wuyang Iron Co., Ltd., presenting 3.21%.

2. 17.94% of the total turnover of the Group during the period
was attributable to the Group's five largest customers.
Amongst which the Hancheng Project was the largest
customer, accounting for 4.69% of the total turnover.

3. None of the directors, supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company's share
capital) has any interest in above mentioned suppliers or
customers.

PROCEEDS FROM THE H SHARES ISSUE

The use of listing proceeds of the Company for the period details
in the Section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual
report.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITES AND OVERDUE TIME DEPOSITS

As at 31st December, 2004, the Company had no entrusted deposits
in commercial banks or non-bank financial institutions and had no
due deposits that had not been withdrawn.

INCOME TAX AND EXPORT VAT REBATE

Pursuant to the regulation of the Notice on Several Preferential
Income Tax Policies issued by the PRE Ministry of Finance and the
State Tax Bureau on 29th March, 1994, the high technological
enterprises in the high technological development zones approved
by the PRC State Council enjoy an income tax rate of 15% in main
subsidiaries, so the taxable income earned by the Group are subject
to a rate of 15%. So the Board of Directors of the Company holds
that, according to the relevant requlations of PRC laws, the Group
still enjoys an income tax rate of 15% in main subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the stipulations in the document of the PRC Ministry

of Finance, the export VAT rebate applicable to the Group' newly
signed export products contracts is 13% from 15th October, 2003.
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U BUR () INCOME TAX AND EXPORT VAT REBATE (continued)

BETHHB BERWHEEF2004F98 148 B & According to Regulations on the Issues about Increasing VAT Rebate
(RitEREAEERENGES TREANRE) Scope in Northeast Area issued by the PRE Ministry of Finance and
RitMEL S ¥ (AN BERBLEERE the State Tax Bureau in 10th September, 2004, the VAT of part of
RHEBE BATREREINEE 52004F7H1 northeast areas companies (including the Company) turned from
ARERELRERTEE BRER (BER production type to consumption type, which enlarged the VAT
TR ) ETEENBESIENABEERN rebate scope. By 1st July, 2004, the income tax for actually capital
EERE BN E-BRBEARANERE asserts purchased products, purchased products for self construction
KRBT E- (include restructure and construction extension) or tax payable labor
project can be rebated. This policy will have a positive effect on
the Company.

BHRS CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
EREBT I EBEIN AT R ERRME3S - For the connected transactions, see the details in Note 38 to the

financial statements of the annual report.
PR 7 1 o 4B SERVICE AGREEMENT EXTENSION

ARAIRMBAR (REE) R2004512A 100 & The Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) signed a service
RESEREMBAR (BEE) 2N — MR agreement with Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation
B REZENREHZE SRERRKEREHE and its subsidiaries (the Parent Group) on 10th December, 2004.
FHEIRI BIRE BIRER BEERE According to the new agreement, the parent group will provide
REBBAREWONE T ASBATSERES services in training, recuperation, housing, medical etc. for the
Bk -HE EAERE XH5BAARKSNE Group's employees and the annual trade value will be
T o ¥ BR 7% 19 & 1 2005F 1 A1 B £20075 124 RMB49,920,000; The Group will provide water supply, power supply
AL REI=F- and tele-communication service to the Parent Group and the annual

trade will be RMB8,920,000. The duration of the new agreement is

three years starting from 1st January, 2005 to 31st December, 2007.
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CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Audit Committee have, in such capacity, reviewed the connected
transactions referred to in Note 38 to the financial statements and
confirmed that:

1. Such transactions have been entered into by the Company
in the ordinary and usual course of its business; and

2. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) on normal
commercial terms (which expression will be applied by
reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be made
by similar entities with PRC) or (ll) (where there is no
available comparison) on terms that are fair and reasonable
so far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned;
and

3. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing such transactions or () (where there is no such
agreement) on terms no less favorable than terms available
to third parties.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

The Company already has an accountant who meets the regulations
set out in article 3.24 of the List Rules, but he is neither a fellow
or associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants nor
of a similar body of accountants recognized by that Society for the
purpose of granting exemptions from the examination requirement
for membership of that Society. Therefore, the Company will employ
a person who meets the above-mentioned qualification to assist
the Company's accountant in supervising the Company’s financial
reporting procedures and internal controls. Until now, the Company
has not found such a suitable person yet.

i
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EESEMZEE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL COMMITTEE

ARABR2004F8R27TEM L TEESCEMELE The Company established Board of Director Special Committee in

2 ARBKERZE S BREES FHZES 27th August, 2004, including Strategy Develop Committee,

MREZEe HEERZECHATNRERAN H Supervisation Committee, Salary Committee and Nomination
FHTEE -2 FRTESMH - BEREECH= Committee. Strategy Develop Committee is consisted of 5 directors.

FREREN HPB IR TEEIME FRTES Among which, 3 members are executive directors and 2 members

— % FMEEB SR =RESMER P BRI are non-executive directors. Supervisation Committee is consisted

EE R FPTESME-RELEEH=-FES of 3 directors. Among which, 2 members are independent non-

ERCERBUFNTEEME RTEE % executive directors and 1 members are non-executive directors.

(FFRARERME ) Salary Committee is consisted of 3 directors. Among which, 2
members are independent non-executive directors and 1 members
are executive directors. Nomination Committee is consisted of 3
directors. Among which, 2 members are independent non-executive
directors and 1 members are executive directors.

BUFHTEEBHIMNER THE CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS INDEPENDENCE

ARRIEEKE LB FRTESHEB I The Company has already received the Annual Letter of

HOFERRL BB MHFE(EMmRA)E3.13 Confirmation from every independent non-executive director on
RETE B AR — BB RS BRBYLA L their independence. Their independence accord to every

independence index issued in article 3.13 in List Regulation and
they are independent person.

BRAER SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

W 2004%F 128 31B - K 2 Al £ K & As at 31st December, 2004, the share capital structure of the

/1,189,151,0000% * H H % {2 A 54 720,000,000 Company comprised of 1,189,151,000 shares, of which 720,000,000

B ol 8% K 8 60.55% 0 EINHIR IR R HF A shares were held by the promoter (representing 60.55% of the

469,151,000/% " 15 48 MR 7R #939.45% « AARE_T entire share capital) and 469,151,000 shares were held by overseas

TEAHERTEMNBRE- H shares investors (representing 39.45% of the entire share capital).
The Company did not issue any stocks in the year of 2004.

BRRAZ NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

R2004512A318 AR Al iR A SR8 R 1 Details of the Company's registered shareholders as at 31st

T December, 2004 were as follows:

BMEEZARBRE (HERELAFZE) 1 Holders of State Shares (held by the Promoter) 1
HP% A% 2 25 121 Holders of H Shares 121
Rt BR B 8 122 Total number of shareholders 122
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BETERE TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS
2004127318 $ ARREM EFRESRS At 31st December, 2004, the top ten registered shareholders who
METERENERERNT: hold the most shares were as follows:
% ERBEZH
BRRER Number of Percentage of e
Name of Shareholders Shares Shares Holding Remark
BREEHREEE 720,000,000 60.55% BB EAR
Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation state shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 457,890,798 38.50% HI%
H shares
HSBC Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited A/C BR-1 7,410,000 0.62% HA%
H shares
Cheung Yum Tin 460,000 0.04% HI%
H shares
HSBC Nominees (Hong Kong) Ltd 254,000 0.02% HAR
H shares
Li Siu Kei 250,000 0.02% Hi%
H shares
Tang Lai Ming Cavini 250,000 0.02% HAR
H shares
Yang Tak Kee 120,000 0.01% HI%
H shares
Au Lei Man 100,000 0.008% HI%
H shares
Chan Suk Wan 100,000 0.008% Hi%
H shares

Hh
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HER IR R IR FE 2 47 (BB 2004 12B31HR R INTEREST'S IN THE SHARE CAPITAL ANALYSIS OF HOLDERS OF
&) H SHARES (ACCORDING TO SHAREHOLDERS LIST AT 31ST
DECEMBER, 2004)

gE FRE HEBRTHRAESH
Scope (number AE Number of Percentage to
of shares) People Number Share Holding Issued H Shares
1-1000 1-1000 3 202 0.000%
1,001-5,000 1,001-5,000 24 58,000 0.012%
5,001-10,000 5,001-10,000 37 336,000 0.072%
10,001-100,000 10,001-100,000 50 2,122,000 0.452%
100,001-A I 100,001-above 7 466,634,798 99.464%
At total 121 469,151,000 100%
BEERATARGEESTE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

ARBE2004F M KHEHGEETEBMIN L The Company obeyed the regulation of Code of Best Practice of
MR (RERRTR) BHE- Stork Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at any time in 2004.

ARAER EERAREBABRREHNGE Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Company

SFORETADFRENEBRLE- confirmed that all directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies within the period under review.

BB AUDITORS
EARAKY AR 2% BERS AT RE Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

HEXKSHMEBAERL A KRBT AZEAM- Certified Public Accountants Limited have acted as auditors of the
Company since its date of incorporation.

REZEMH On behalf of the Board of Directors

EER Chairman

HE Geng Lei

ReEeiRE —STRFMNA+AH Harbin, the People’s Republic of China, 16th April, 2005
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RTER AREXERSANEN-
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HETAEREBE EATERTRRAE
MEFEHWRZ RE HAZREERE
FAER ERNRRERARBE QAN
W17/

To all shareholders:

For the year ended at 31st December, 2004, all members of the
supervisory committee (“the Committee”) of Harbin Power
Equipment Company Limited (“the Company”) fulfilled their
Supervisory of Committee functions in accordance with the
regulations of the PRC Laws on Companies, the Listing Rules of the
HKSE and the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Committee had reviewed documents submitted by the Company
and supervised the Company's productive and managing activities
and the manager level members’ work performance by way of
participating the General Meeting and the Company’s Board of
Directors meetings and setting up supervisory committee meetings.
In addition, the Committee had participated actively big events,
such as the Company’s production, management, technology
renovation and investment plan etc. and gave a lot of positive
opinions and suggestions, which pushed forward the Company’s
work. The Committee’s specific duties are as follows:

1. During the period under review, the Company operated
strictly according to national laws, regulations and
regulations and procedures for List Company. With carrying
out every resolutions of the General Meetings, deepening
reform, strengthening management and working with the
strategy of reducing cost and improving efficiency, the
Company had finished production and operation task in all
fields and achieved its target. In general, the managing
results are satisfied.

2. The Committee is aware that the directors, the managers
and other senior managers have actively carried out their
duties in accordance with relevant regulations of the Articles
of Association of the Company and in the best interests of
the shareholders. In addition, they carried out carefully the
resolutions and decisions from the General Meetings and
Board of Directors. They have not abused their powers to
act against the interests of the shareholders and the
Company.
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3. The Committee has reviewed the Company’s financial system
and financial situations and got the conclusion that the
Company’s organization and system of the financial section
is completed. In addition, with further strengthening capital
management, cost management, contract management and
management and research on asset disposition, the financial
work was operated step by step according to inner control
system and financial management system and ensured the
capital operate safe and efficiently. The annual financial
statement and dividend distribution scheme and the related
documents submitted by Board of Directors to the annual
General Meeting for review can truly reflect financial
situation, asset situation and operation results of the
Company. They have not abused their powers to act against
disciplines and regulations.

4. The Committee reviewed work report of the Board of
Directors. These reports truly, fully and fairly reflected the
Company’s every operation in this year.

5. The Committee is aware that the connected transactions are
done in fair and reasonable principle. They have not abused
their powers to act against the interests of the Company
and shareholders.

6. The Committee is aware that with further strengthening
management and improving economy benefit, the Company
should continue to improve its payoff capability and level
and keep continuable developing tide.

The Committee sincerely appreciates trust and supports from every
employee of the Company and shareholder. With positively exploring
new supervisory approach and method, establishing detailed
supervisory and inspect method, the Committee will performance
supervisory function better and work hard for achieving production
and operation target in 2005 of the Company.

For and On behalf of the supervisory committee
Chairman

Lang en-qi

Harbin, the People’s Republic of China, 16th April, 2005
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ARENERREARBEEURAEEER The Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation the
R %Eﬁlﬂiﬁj\ﬁ/\ﬂl&ﬂﬁﬁ’]lﬁm% shareholder of controlling shares, which is a stated-owned company
registered in The People’s Republic of China.

li

ARARERENER BRREBADNMEE Z The Company protects shareholder’s profit. Shareholders as the
BER EFRMRENEN YREEENEE 2 owner of the Company enjoy rights regulated in laws and
ATEHFMERE BERRBEHL2EAR AR regulations and shoulder commensurately obligations. The Company
BREERAENEBEZEHBERMAEE-REX will treat every shareholder equally and initiate shareholders to
SRNAINE N OEITERE - EIEBHR join in the Company’s management. The shareholders enjoy rights
S BENEHENRENZEERRAGHERE. to information and rights to decision-making for the Company’s
big events. The General Meeting of Shareholders is the power
organization of the Company, and it exercise its functions and
power according to laws. At the approval of connected transactions,
the shareholder with common interests should give up to vote at

the General Meeting.
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BRARRAS () TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING (continued)
ARAE004F5BRA—ARRAFAS CHER In 2004, the Company had an annual General Meeting. All relevant
BB THRARF004F4A25BRERFERE B items for discussion and shareholders’ resolutions in the General
HPETH 2 EER Meeting are listed on the Note of the Annual General Meeting.
EEg BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ARAEZFERRE2BRENR UEEAARAE On behalf of the whole shareholders’ profits, the Company's Board

BELL FHERERYD- of Directors as the leader achieves a lot in business operation.
ARAEFERVBKEMANK EFHITESOA The Company’s Board of Directors is consisted by 11 members,

BEUEXE SRMEE BRIFLE BERL among which six members are the executive directors including
E HPRAE REELEE FRTES2NIR Mr. Geng Lei, Mr. Gong Jingkun, Mr. Zhao Kefei, Mr. Duan Hongyi,
BELE ZRALE BUEEIN BEAEN Mr. Shang Zhongfu and Mr. Wu Feizhang; one member is non-
REHMERLEE TERLE -SEFTNEHAR execution director-Mr. Liang Wenyan, four members are independent
=% 520066 A20R @M -EEERBHEMELR directors-Mr. Zhou Daojiong, Mr. Du Xingyou, Ms. Ding Xuemei
BRZARERAAB(ESEIERA) HBE and Mr. Li Genshen. The term for every director is three years and
BETEHE GERQRRMERENER: will be expired in 20th June, 2006. Board members honestly,
carefully and actively carries out their duties according to Board of
Directors Regulations and protect shareholders’ interests.

ARAE20045 £ BFRTARAZBES2NNE The Company had four Board of Directors meetings all together in

E2R - BRAEENEZTHREHNA100% ° the year of 2004 and the participant rate for every director is
100%.
EERRAKE CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

ARRBRUNREERELLE-ERD AR The Company’'s Chairman and General Manager is set independently.

O RESRANSAEEE ARBhBERIELE The Chairman is Mr. Geng Lei and the General Manager is Mr.

ER E=R ARBRAMNES 2 HEEMERZ. Zhao Kefei. Their is no any other relationships among Chairman,
General Manager and other directors.
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RE-FRERRERGER REEHEKT KQF
M2004F8A2TERU TEZEREMZES &
EMZEENBRMBENT:

- ERZESH3ABR: TEH(BUE
2) BAEM(BIES) BAE BUES
TEBEETAZE-TBRE WIHE
ATEREVES RSB MR TE BB B A
HAE EERANAREAHERLEE
M BB ABESENEES ZENEE:
HARRGHEXREREFRIAMAR
MAEREETEE BRORTHEER
FREER THEERERER JIELM
BREBRANEHNE BREAMBR
5 BRE EERRFEMBENSRAR
EXEREAZRANABEER.

— FHZEedm3ABRCERACGEHRGTE
2)#EA(BUES) R&KCHNTE
2 FMTEEFTRALELIEZRE IR
BE MACANFHERARFHBE 2
HERMER BREQAREZRAREEA
ENFHIR 2R FELREZRSR
EEABNFXERFHN ESSRREAZRR
MEMER.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

In order to further improve corporate governance structure and
operation level, the Company set up several special committees
under Board of Directors on 27th August, 2004. The organization
and functions of each special committee are as follows:

A.

The auditing committee is consisted by 3 members: Ding
Xuemei (independent direct), Zhou Daojiong (independent
direct), and Duan Hongyi. Ding Xuemei is the chairman for
this committee. Main responsibilities: make decision on
employing and fire auditors outside the Company; make
decision on auditing fees; supervise the Company’s inner
auditing system and it enforcement; responsible for the
communications between outside audit and inside audit;
supervise the conformability between the Company and the
accountant major standard and security exchange; review
the Company’s mid stage results and annual results and
communicate with the domestic and foreign auditors on the
existing problem; supervise the Company’s inner control
system and review the Company's important connected
transactions; review and supervise the existing and potential
risk; the other issues authorized or entrusted by the Board
of Directors.

The Salary Committee will be consisted by 3 members: Li
Genshen (independent director), Du Xingyou (independent
director), Liang Weiyan. Li Gengsheng is the chairman of
this committee. Main responsibilities: research on the
Company's salary system and salary policy and give advice
and suggestions; draft the Company's directors’ and the high
level managers’ salary; review and evaluate the Company’'s
directors’ and the high level managers’ results and salary;
the other issues authorized or entrusted by the Board of
Directors.
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£EMEZEES (E) SPECIAL COMMITTEE (continued)

REZEGHIABN HEEF(BLE
) TEHBIES) BLtE BUES
HEEEETFEZE -FERE REAA
mETEEN BERBENRELBYHES
SHRENBRANESCRIES HEE
=R Z«%E)xﬁﬁ’]ﬂiﬂﬁﬂ&f THEE
ERNEZ BEZHESERNEZMEEA
EEPN- LT%%W BANMEE NRETE
EVREES HEARFESCRINEL
BREBABENTEEVRIER EFT
BESZRENEMNEE-

BRERZEGHSABK SRE FRA
GEITES) R&XRCGFRTES) AT
B REE ZSEMETIAZE-TER
B HARRPERBBEREETHELR
HERMER HAKEFSHEEARE
BENRETHELRHBERNES HA
KESSREERENER EELZRA
Lﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬂ]ﬁi”ﬂ QNN

AR ERRBRETHALRIERNE
=3 i%?&*&i?%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁl%lﬁ
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Nomination Committee is consisted of 3 members: Dou
Xingyou (independent director), Ding Xuemei (independent
director), Duan Hongyi. Dong Xingyou is the chairman of
this committee. Main responsibility: give suggestions to the
Board of Director on the scale and structure according the
Company’s operating condition, asset scale and stock right
structures; research the selection standard and procedures
for director and managers and give suggestions to the Board
of Directors; search for qualified directors and managers
aboard.; review and give suggestions on the candidates for
directors and managers; review and give suggestions to the
other high level manager be proposed to the Board of
Directors for employment; the other issues authorized or
entrusted by the Board of Directors.

The Strategic Development Committee consists of five
members: Gong Jing-kun, Li Gen-shen (non-executive
director), Liang Wei-yan (non-executive director), Shang
Zhong-fu, Wu Wei-zhang. Gong Jing-kun is the Chairman of
this committee. The main functions are: studying the
Company’s long-term development strategies and plans and
presenting ideas and suggestions; studying the important
investment and financing plans which need the approval of
Board of Directors and presenting ideas and suggestions;
studying the important capital operation, assets operation
projects which need the approval of Board of Directors and
presenting ideas and suggestions; studying the Company’s
legal representative governance structure and administration
system and presenting ideas and suggestions; other issues
authorized or entrusted by the Board of Directors.
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Corporate Governance

Exe SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Exen2RREAE URAMBERES ALE The supervisory committee holds responsibility to all shareholders

RaBRAEBOIEANAG L AREETEUNE and gives efficient supervision that whether duty implementation

B RERRNE EER taken by finance professional, general managers and senior members
is complied with laws and regulations and to protect all
shareholders’ legal interests.

ARRESEHELESEK- The supervisory committee of the Company is consisted of 5
Supervisors.

W%AEZOMEA AR T2RESEH UEHA The supervisory committee had 2 supervisory meetings in 2004 for

ANMBERER - EFINEMENEEZEGH- reviewing the Company’s finance report. The supervisors should
attend all the meetings hold by Board of Directors.

FEREHES INFORMATION PUBLISHMENT AND SUPERVISION

ARAITERRERREENER UREERAH In order to improve the Company’ transparence, the Company pays
BRE UEERRABEEER AREERET attention to communicating with shareholders and investors. The

HRAMBRTE BB £ TE REMWETEER Company will publish information actually, accurately, completely
B H FEEEAMRERRERAKREEER: and timely strictly according to laws and regulation, Company's
BERL-REBBBIIMBITHBENE & regulations and listing rules. At the middle stage, after the publish
HREE UREAREHAE KRR CBRRS of annual achievements report and big investment decision,
NEE BRI IBLELABUESERER recommend and introduction meeting of market analysis

organization, press conference and one - one discussion with
investment organization will be hold at least twice every year. The
Company strengthened its supervision on connected transaction,
and all connected transaction must be reviewed by independent
boards.

ARRIBBEERENIEFEERBNERE The Company will do its duties, continuously complete its
??i ERNER BBRETSERSE THTERR management, improve its management level according to laws and
RE REARERKT BER(EFTHHAR regulations of negotiable securities supervisory organization,

ljjaw continiouly perfect the Company's management, promote
management level and optimize the Board of Directors’ decision
ability,

i
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Auditors’ Report

FRBERORERGERAARRE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT
COMPANY LIMITED
BREEBIRERGERLRA

(RAPEARAMNBEFMK L 2RNDERAF) (A joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

AGHMITE TR EZHAR E0EZIEERE We have audited the financial statements on pages 50 to 96 which
ALERMZERAGBHOIBERE have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

EERGEMNERNEE Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

BERAZEZRAERREBELN TN BRE- The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
EREZSHBHRRE EELNABHRAAEN financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
BHHK- financial statements which give a true and fair view it is

fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently.

ATHEERRBATERIENER HZEN It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
BREAREBUNER URRBREAAHEER our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion

G- ErmeRRRRERIT &R MAFBER solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of

TRB AU TIREARENTHEIMECA LA engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

EEME responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

ERNER Basis of opinion

AITREBREBSHMASEMOREENETE We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
BEIE-BREBEAENMENAEZENBERE Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
S BELFEEEARNEE TEEFHES Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
RENZENBRRBMENERG AL A evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial

ETNgHHERTES BERAk BESEMA statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
BER RREERERYEHMBEZSGHK estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation
Ko of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies

are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the
Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

ATERBEFETERZTER GURME KR We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the

REVEANBHEBRERER RATHREGRD information and explanations which we considered necessary in
HRE BRREVBRAREFAEEHRRM £ order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
HEBMBE - EREELR AINEHEZEY assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
BRRASANENTRELREZM-ATHE K material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
THERIEERTIERBRY TAEMNER: the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the

financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

5
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Auditors’ Report

BER Opinion
ARRLANIFBHRRODEERRNTHRE | In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of

ARk EEER-FTEMFF+-_A=+—HmH the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31st
BRAK ESEEEZBILFENENNRER December, 2004 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for

B WERR(ARGI) cREERMEZSHA- the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BEBMERAGIMT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

HESA Certified Public Accountants

BB ZTTAFMA+TRA Hong Kong, 16th April, 2005
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

2004 2003

Jiog3 ARE T ARSFT

NOTES Rmb’000 Rmb’000

FEEBKRA Turnover 5 10,215,670 5,144,246
TEEBHA Cost of sales (9,452,684) (4,491,189)
TEEBRET Gross profit 762,986 653,057
HeEBKRA Other operating income 7 153,513 108,389
EEER Distribution costs (117,178) (98,337)
EEBH Administrative expenses (566,802) (486,025)
HEp BT Other operating expenses (19,790) (1,749)
& A Profit from operations 8 212,729 175,335
B i Finance costs 9 (47,889) (111,525)
NN Share of results of associates 4,123 6,526
B % A1 4z A Profit before taxation 168,963 70,336
] Income tax expense 11 (27,034) (14,090)
B& % 1% g F Profit after taxation 141,929 56,246
DERRER Minority interests (24,357) (2,775)
REFEH B Net profit for the year 117,572 53,471
P Dividends 12 9,513 7,135
GREM—EAR (L) Earnings per share - basic 13 9.9 cents 4.5 cents

5
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-ZZEFEWNE+_-_HA=+—H At 31st December, 2004

FRBEE
EEEE
R E DR 2R
EHERE

RBEE
FE

JE R 5
HE R

#iEA R R

JE Wi B8t B8 /A m) 3R
BEHERE
BEBEITER
RITEH
RITEGFLRE S

RBRE
BiEA R B

FH%%
ERNHKEER

EW%H

REEER DR FUR

EXHE
BAR—FRERZER

RBEEFH

NERBEERNAEE

B RENFRA

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in associates
Investments in securities

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade debtors

Other debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Amounts due from customers for
contract work

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Investments in securities

Pledged bank deposits

Bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due to customers for
contract work

Trade creditors

Other creditors and accrued charges

Deposits received

Amount due to ultimate holding
company

Tax liabilities

Borrowings — due within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

=3
NOTES

14
16
17

18
19

20
21
17
36

20
22

23
24

25
26

2004 2003
ARE TR AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
2,830,016 2,373,756
109,440 90,423
3,274,496 68,970
6,213,952 2,533,149
8,120,600 4,766,121
2,459,445 2,103,273
5,906,157 2,230,354
1,013,898 1,388,104
32,520 36,702
1,672,940 296,109
- 47,584
1,035,448 441,666
4,560,239 3,670,679
24,801,247 14,980,592
607,981 71,873
2,381,212 1,475,544
262,455 341,172
18,621,301 7,151,541
36,133 29,970
22,499 5,813
784,200 561,779
22,715,781 9,637,692
2,085,466 5,342,900
8,299,418 7,876,049

Hh
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(#8)
Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

MR-ZFENME+_-_HA=+—H At 31st December, 2004

2004 2003
Jiog3 ARMFTT AREFTT
NOTES Rmb’000 Rmb’000
R K # & CAPITAL AND RESERVES
R Share capital 27 1,189,151 1,189,151
AR B R EEE Share premium and reserves 1,923,911 1,815,874
3,113,062 3,005,025
DERRES MINORITY INTERESTS 540,546 516,189
*RBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bkize Deposits received 23 2,878,848 2,014,878
BR—EREEYIER Borrowings — due after one year 26 1,489,462 2,062,957
REEERRBFHA Advance from ultimate holding
company 28 277,500 277,000
4,645,810 4,354,835
8,299,418 7,876,049

HBREVEZE LM BRRALHAEFEN_Z The financial statements on pages 50 to 96 were approved and
}?ﬂiﬂﬂﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬁi@&ﬁt}&%ﬁ Wi TIES authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16th April, 2005

RREFEEE and are signed on its behalf by:
5w BHRE
Zhao Ke-fei Shang Zhong-fu
s s
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

5
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Balance Sheet

R-ZZEFEWNE+_-_HA=+—H At 31st December, 2004

2004 2003
fff i ARMFTT ARSFT
NOTES Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
BEEE Property, plant and equipment 14 298,891 97,532
NN L Interests in subsidiaries 15 2,518,612 2,712,959
RE &R AR Interest in an associate 16 49,730 40,100
EAERE Investments in securities 17 17,879 14,300
2,885,112 2,864,891
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
T7E Inventories 18 86,288 =
& I AR X Trade debtors 88,976 1,807
HeREF - He RBNKE Other debtors, deposits and
prepayments 59,578 4,285
BITER Bank deposits 323,436 367,103
RITHEF LA Bank balances and cash 85,952 161,694
644,230 534,889
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JE 15 HR 3R Trade creditors 44,881 2,495
HeRNHRREFER Other creditors and accrued charges 9,416 10,144
Bz e Deposits received 23 85,311 48,342
REHEFER AR RIE Amount due to ultimate holding
company 24 7,950 7,950
R Tax liabilities 736 699
AR—FRERZER Borrowings — due within one year 26 135,000 90,000
283,294 159,630
RBEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 360,936 375,259
NBRRBEEENAEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,246,048 3,240,150
MR 6 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
M 2 Share capital 27 1,189,151 1,189,151
IR A% (B o i Share premium and reserves 1,698,397 1,632,499
2,887,548 2,821,650
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
AR —FREZEZER Borrowings - due after one year 26 315,000 375,000
REHEBER AR RIE Advance from ultimate holding
company 28 43,500 43,500
3,246,048 3,240,150
izl EHE
Zhao Ke-fei Shang Zhong-fu
Ex Ex
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

s
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Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

A5H THE GROUP
R-FEZF-F-H At 1st January, 2003
KEHE Profit for the year
a% Transfers
RE Dividends
R-EEME-F—H At 1st January, 2004
HBRLEZHBAT Release on partial disposal

of interests in a subsidiary
KEHE Profit for the year
g5 Transfers
RE Dividends

R-FEME+ZFA=1-A At 31st December, 2004

NG THE COMPANY
R-EE=%£-A-H At 1st January, 2003
REFE Profit for the year
g5 Transfers
RE Dividends
RZFZME-R-A At 1st January, 2004
KEHE Profit for the year
g5 Transfers
RE Dividends

R=BEME+=A=+—-H At 31st December, 2004

5
5o [

kx gx EE EE &

kx e AEE ARe rig A @t
Statutory ~ Statutory  Statutory

Share Share capital surplus public ~ Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve welfare fund profits Total
AT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
1,189,151 788,155 709,850 79,211 88,205 104,117 2,958,689
- - - - - 53,471 53,471
- - - 9,913 9536 (19,449) -
- - - - - (7,135) (7,135)
1,189,151 788,155 709,850 89,124 97,741 131,004 3,005,025
- - = (36) (7) 21 (22)
- - - - = 117,572 117,572
= = = 24,789 23,978 (48,767) =
- - = - - (9,513) (9,513)
1,189,151 788,155 709,850 113,877 121,712 190,317 3,113,062
1,189,151 788,155 709,850 52,183 52,183 31,805 2,823,327
- - - - = 5,458 5,458
- - - 5,130 5,130 (10,260) -
) B} - - - (7,135) (7,135)
1,189,151 788,155 709,850 57,313 57,313 19,868 2,821,650
- - - - = 75,411 75,411
- - - 11,665 11,665 (23,330) -
- - - - - (9,513) (9,513)
1,189,151 788,155 709,850 68,978 68,978 62,436 2,887,548
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Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

BEFEARE BRUEEN2ARIEFAT: In accordance with PRC Company Law, the profit after taxation is
applied in the following order:

(1) FERESE: (1) making up of losses;

2) RERZEBHLEBES: (2)  allocation to statutory surplus reserve;

3) REZEEAZ=®: (3)  allocation to statutory public welfare fund;

4) RRERBHABEE R (4)  allocation to discretionary surplus reserve; and

(5) BEEBERZIBKE- (5)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.
BETERARERARBMBEAR 2 AR ER" In accordance with PRC Company Law and the relevant Articles of
ARAREMBARGABEMNRRTREHERR Association, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to
BB BHRE RRI10%K5%E10% %R &HE ) appropriate amounts equal to 10% and 5% to 10% respectively of
BRARERM 2 ZEBRAREREZE AR EHRA- their profit after taxation as determined in accordance with PRC

accounting standards to each of the statutory surplus reserve and
statutory public welfare fund respectively.

ETBHRAEEARRERN —H{H BHAREE Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when
B R RIFEME R 250%8 Al AAB R AR BT E its balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the Company's

RAVE EEBHAREIANBREER BREAR registered capital, further appropriation needs not be made.

AZEBIBRER - BEARBIZEAERHRAESR According to PRC Company Law, statutory surplus reserve may be

BREREAR ZERARERERAZEBELEIR used to make up past losses, to increase production and business

A EAR25% ° operations or to increase capital by means of conversion. However
when funds from statutory surplus reserve are converted to capital,
the funds remaining in such reserve shall amount to not less than
25% of the registered capital.

EERReMARRERN - REFE LA Statutory public welfare fund is also part of shareholders’ equity.

A HEREANARBRISEBEMNNER TS E- According to PRC Company Law, it shall only be applied for capital
MZEEIRMRENAAEEMEE EE AR expenditure related to the provision of collective welfare for staff
ERFETFE TGRSR and workers and these welfare facilities remain as property of the

Group. Statutory public welfare fund is non-distributable other than
upon liquidation.

BRARNBECRABRETUREEELR ([BRE The statutory capital reserve represents the surplus arising from

SERA ) NBEFELEER EARAKUE the difference between the fair value of the net assets of the

HEEENATEEAZEATTRESERAINESR principal business undertakings transferred from Harbin Power Plant

FEARBREREAEME BN ZHE A% Equipment Group Corporation (“HPEGC") to the Group and the
nominal value of the State shares issued to HPEGC by the Company
when the Company was formed.

s
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Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

@A Lm@RG)EEEEMEE 22 L5 48 The amount of appropriation in respect of items (4) and (5) above

BRESERNEARFALRERBLARNLEBN R for any year shall be recommended by the directors in accordance

BREEET VEARFRRGHE. with the operational conditions and development requirements of
the Company and its subsidiaries and shall be submitted to the
shareholders in general meeting for approval.

ERARBEBBERRENZERBLAEERAE AR No dividends shall be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries
2R ARBAREMB ARG EIRERE before they have made up their losses and made allocations to the
statutory surplus reserve and the statutory public welfare fund.

BEFBEBR-—ANARAENABRTEBENHE .2 Pursuant to a document issued by the Ministry of Finance in August
X AR TREZ & BARET B £ 1995 in respect of profit appropriations, the amount available for
FEzeRIREBEERLRER 2 G ERMHE distribution to shareholders is the lesser of the amount determined
e MENREERAE R_TTNEF+=A= in accordance with PRC accounting standards and the amount
T—BARAZANERERREEELEES 2 determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
B EAIPTEE 2 B 175 A A A K #62,436,0007T accepted in Hong Kong. At 31st December, 2004, the amount
(ZZZT=%F: AR™19,868,0007T) - a0 £ X frid - available for distribution to shareholders was Rmb62,436,000 (2003:
EEAREMAREERKEKE TR Rmb19,868,000) representing the retained profits of the Company

prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

Kong. As also mentioned above, the balance of statutory surplus

reserve can also be distributed to shareholders in certain situations.

5
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-ZFENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

2004 2003
AR¥ETFTT AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
REEK OPERATING ACTIVITIES
SE R Profit from operations 212,729 175,335
BETHIHE: Adjustments for:
RERER Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 1,360 6,112
FTEEHE Allowance for inventories 10,822 5,680
3Ftﬁ EAURE Dividend income from unlisted
BEWA investment securities (645) (222)
HEREH Depreciation and amortisation 241,042 208,205
REFLMBESHM Gain on disposal of unlisted investment
RERS k& securities = (978)
RERTEE (REFHR) (Gain) loss on disposal of property,
BX plant and equipment (2,533) 896
EARURERERR Impairment loss recognised in respect
of investments in securities 2,043 -
MEKA Interest income (121,293) (26,223)
@O RERER Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts (7,414) (12,120)
BRI KL Operating cash flows before movements
%ﬂ“‘fﬁi mE in working capital 336,111 356,685
FEEM Increase in inventories (3,390,410) (1,292,915)
JFE Uit B S Increase in trade debtors (373,644) (152,232)
HEHy Rz ek Increase in other debtors, deposits
AT FRIEE and prepayments (3,701,449) (1,437,585)
BEERERTRD Decrease (increase) in amounts due
(1) from customers for contract work 374,206 (511,123)
JE W B B A Al IR Decrease in amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries 4,182 43,619
EEARBUREZE N CRD) Increase (decrease) in amounts due to
customers for contract work 536,108 (151,528)
& 155 BR 238 0 Increase in trade creditors 911,046 300,663
BN A REERRM D Decrease in other creditors and accrued
charges (63,011) (69,094)
Bz & 2 Increase in deposits received 12,463,862 7,500,837
RS A B RO SE AN Increase in amount due to ultimate
holding company 6,163 5,884
EAZEERRECER Increase (decrease) in value added tax
MIELM R D) and other taxes payable 3,597 (25,448)
MEERESE (FTA) cREeFH Net cash generated from operations 7,106,761 4,567,763
B KA & Interest received 121,293 26,223
EfRE Dividends paid (9,513) (7,135)
B AMER Income tax paid (13,910) (14,837)
REERELE VRS TE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,204,631 4,572,014

i
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

REXH
REEFMRE
REETEE

RITHEFIEM
HEBNNEE LA ES
(EHGLEZRE

LEeER)
RERNRRE
EEARTRERRD
HEBREEE

BRFLTEFERERS

BAKBAR (BHBEA
YRS RELEE)
HEE SR A
RELBHAZEE TR
REEHY
EERAER
B8
EEATER
FRRAER
FRETER
BRIEIRA AR
RELH (FR) 2BL 58
ReRASZENEN
FYRSRALZEN
FRESRASZEN
ReRASZENERZHH
BARERAS
B

BRUERE(R=EARIH)

5
B

iFi3
NOTES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments in securities
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Increase in bank deposits
Net cash outflow from partial disposal
of interests in a subsidiary (net of
cash and cash equivalents disposed of) 30
Investment in an associate
Decrease in pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Dividend received from unlisted
investment securities
Net cash inflow on acquisition of a
subsidiary (net of cash and cash
equivalents acquired) 31
Proceeds from sale of investments
in securities

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid
Repayment of other loans
New bank loans raised
Other loans raised
Advance from ultimate holding company

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash

Bank deposits

Investments in securities (Matured
within 3 months)

2004 2003
ARE TR ARETTL
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
(4,479,002) (19,643)
(710,298) (275,321)
(491,146) (98,765)
(80,863) =
(9,630) =
47,584 54,220
24,370 6,091
645 222

= 59,902

= 9,600
(5.698,340) (263,694)
(468,578) (2,789,841)
(58,123) (122,518)
(818) (40,927)
115,500 1,384,462
2,822 8,427

500 135,520
(408,697) (1,424,877)
1,097,594 2,883,443
4,125,440 1,241,997
5,223,034 4,125,440
4,560,239 3,670,679
261,288 158,652
401,507 296,109
5,223,034 4,125,440
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

1. —RER

ARAB—FKEPEARKME ([HE])
MR 2RI BRAR EHRRNE B
ARG LT -ARAZBRERERAR AR
MEBURBEERA([RMELER
Al ER-—ZFRERBEMR L BEAR
w,

ARRABREERAR EXZZHBAR
RBMERANETEERII TR AT KRR
Z M5 15F BT 5E16.

2. WmHUEE

AHBRRIBAETDKEEREERAL
SRR ([ERGFRA)) RBEELRAE
ZRBEER-

ERACHRAEE T hrmETBEHESR
By BRI RMBEERA([FEE
AR FED B -ADRAKETEE
EAGREEEEFFT A=+ —H2Z%
B mEe

BE_ZTMFE+_A=+—HILFE 5
EETFE SRR LB S RARHR
MPBRER F EREFEERRETE
TEERER

GENERAL

The Company is established as a joint stock limited company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and its H
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Its ultimate holding company is Harbin Power Plant
Equipment Group Corporation (“HPEGC"), a state-owned
enterprise incorporated in the PRC.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are
set out in notes 15 and 16, respectively.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
("HK GAAP") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

HK GAAP differs in certain aspects from the accounting
principles and financial regulations established by the
relevant PRC authorities (“PRC GAAP"). The Company is
required to issue a separate set of statutory financial
statements made up to 31st December each year prepared
in accordance with PRC GAAP.

For the year ended 31st December, 2004, there were no
significant differences between the net assets and results of
the Group in the financial statements prepared under PRC
GAAP and those prepared under HK GAAP.
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POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE RECENTLY
ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") issued a number of new or revised
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") (herein collectively
referred to as “new HKFRSs”) which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2005.
The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2004.

Management is assessing, but has not yet determined, the
potential impact of these new HKFRSs will have on its
financial position and results of operations. These new
HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to how the
results and financial position are presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st December each year.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’'s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition results of its associates for the
year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates
are stated at the Group's share of the net assets less any
identified impairment loss.

The results of associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable during the
year. In the Company's balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost, as reduced by any identified
impairment loss.

Revenue recognition
Development properties

Income from properties developed for sale, where there are
no pre-sales prior to completion of development, is
recognised on the execution of a binding sales agreement
or when the occupation permit is issued by the relevant
authority, whichever is the later.

Income from properties pre-sold prior to completion of
development is recognised when the occupation permit is
issued by the relevant authority.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from construction contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the value of work carried out
during the period. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that they have
been agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract costs incurred where it is probable will be
recoverable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Others

Sales of other goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income, including the amortisation of any discount
or premium on the acquisition of held-to-maturity securities,
is accrued on a time basis, so as to reflect the effective
yield on the underlying asset.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-
progress is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost which includes all
development expenditure and other direct costs, including
interest expenses, attributable to such projects. Upon
completion of construction, the related cost is transferred
from construction-in-progress to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment, as appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation and amortisation is provided to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction-in-progress over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Land use rights Over the term of the rights
Buildings 3.23% - 6.47%
Plant and machinery 6.47% - 13.86%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10.78% - 19.40%
Motor vehicles 16.17% - 19.40%
Construction-in-progress Nil

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Any impairment
loss arising is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis
and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group
intends to hold to maturity (held-to-maturity debt securities)
are measured at amortised cost, less any impairment loss
recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual
amortisation of any discount or premium arising on the
acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated with
other investment income receivable over the term of the
instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period
represents a constant yield on the investment.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an
identified long-term strategic purpose, are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any
impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method.

Properties under development for sale are stated at
development cost incurred to date less provision for
foreseeable losses, if any.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion
that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs
for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Construction contracts (continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When a contract covers a number of assets, the construction
of each asset is treated as a separate contract when separate
proposals have been submitted for each asset, each asset
has been separately negotiated and the costs and revenues
of each asset can be separately identified. A group of
contracts, performed concurrently or in a continuous
sequence, is treated as a single construction contract when
they were negotiated as a single package and are so closely
inter-related that they constitute a single project with an
overall profit margin.

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefit costs charged to the income statement
represent the amount payable under a defined contribution
arrangement with the local government.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over
its useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be

recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of income
and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes income statement items that are never
taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset which they
related to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Renminbi are initially
recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
such currencies are retranslated at the rates ruling on the
balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on translation
are dealt with in the income statement. Exchange rates used
are the unified exchange rates quoted by the People’s Bank
of China.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies related to costs which they are
intended to compensate are recognised as income when the
relevant costs are incurred. Government subsidies related to
assets are recognised as a deduction of the carrying amount
of relevant assets.

i
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5. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold and services rendered by the Group to outside
customers during the year, net of value added tax (“VAT")
and sales returns, and is analysed as follows:

2004 2003

ARMFTT ARSFT

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

Sales of properties 170,256 83,832

Sales of goods 8,842,005 3,855,843
Revenue from construction

contracts 1,180,669 1,179,968

Services rendered 22,740 24,603

10,215,670 5,144,246

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

The Group operates in five major segments as follows -
main thermal power equipment, main hydro power
equipment, engineering services for power stations, ancillary
equipment for power stations and AC/DC motors and other
products.

Principal activities are as follows:

Main thermal power equipment
- manufacture of main thermal power equipment.

Main hydro power equipment
- manufacture of main hydro power equipment.

Engineering services
- providing engineering services for power stations.

Ancillary equipment
- manufacture of ancillary equipment for power stations.

AC/DC motors and other products
- manufacture of AC/DC motor and other products.
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6. XBALESH (K 6.  BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
EKo (E) Business segments (continued)
ARELEBNABELINRMAT: Segment information about these businesses is presented

below.
2004 BUEK REREHR
AEIHRE KETHRE SUIRKE LREERE RHETER
Main Main Engineering  Ancillary AC/DC
thermal hydro services  equipment motors
power power  for power  for power  and other R E i 8 a6

equipment  equipment stations stations products Eliminations Consolidated
ARBTRE ARBTR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARKET:R
Rmb’000  Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

TEERBA REVENUE

LSO External sales 7,208,106 728,162 1,180,669 224,614 874,119 - 10,215,670
ELON Inter-segment sales 37,009 - - 155,345 156,928 (349,282) -
A Total revenue 7,245,115 728,162 1,180,669 379,959 1,031,047 (349,282) 10,215,670
NHBEHNHEERUNRITSERTEN- Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

THBERR SEGMENT RESULTS 559,194 35,723 59,675 26,062 82,332 - 762,986
AABEBERE  Unallocated corporate expenses (550,257)
eXEH Profit from operations 212,729
RS Finance costs (47,889)
RESA%EH  Share of results from associates 4,123 4,123

BHAIELHE  Profit before taxation

£R5H 168,963
#a Income tax expense (27,034)
BREEH Profit after taxation 141,929

Hh
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6. ¥ENHED (HF) 6.  BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
%o (&) Business segments (continued)
BEARR BALANCE SHEET
2004 EhEN RERER
RETHRE KEIRFRE EUIRRE REERE RECER
Main Main Engineering  Ancillary AC/DC
thermal hydro services  equipment motors
power power  for power  for power  and other af
equipment  equipment stations stations products Consolidated
ARBTT ARETR ARETn AREFn ARETT ARETR
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
EE ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 12,695,467 1,439,534 1,793,799 1,047,837 2,361,086 19,337,723
REBENE 2 ER Interests in associates - - - - - 109,440
APBBYEE Unallocated corporate assets 11,568,036
AltEEE Consolidated total assets 31,015,199
Bf LIABILITIES
PRBE Segment liabilities 18,510,608 1,612,094 811,774 1,420,226 2,032,631 24,387,333
FIBETERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,974,258
Altaafk Consolidated total liabilities 27,361,591
EvER OTHER INFORMATION
BRI Capital additions 633,025 28,433 2,11 32,244 24,109 720,532
nEREH Depreciation and amortisation 167,458 31,359 4,306 9,574 28,345 241,082

5
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6. XBALESH (K 6.  BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
EKo (E) Business segments (continued)
2003 BUEE RENEH
NETREE KEIRRE BUIRRE REERE REUER
Main Main  Engineering Ancillary AC/DC
thermal hydro services  equipment motors
power power  forpower  forpower  and other ALiEi% af
equipment  equipment stations stations products  Eliminations  Consolidated

ARRTE  ARBTL ARBFL ARBTT ARETT ARXTT ARETR
Rmb’000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Amb'000  Amb'000  Amb'000

TEERMA REVENUE

SR External sales 2,898,839 517,555 1,179,968 147,132 400,752 - 5,144,246
AHHMA Inter-segment sales 13,405 - - 26,630 31,131 (71,166) -
aA Total revenue 2,912,244 517,555 1,179,968 173,762 431,883 (71,166) 5,144,246
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
PHEEHR SEGMENT RESULTS 395,225 120,359 62,996 38,473 36,004 - 653,057
APEBHER  Unallocated corporate expenses (477,722)
EERA Profit from operations 175,335
B Finance costs (111,525)
REEREEF  Share of results from associates 6,526 6,526

Bitaica Profit before taxation

T 1%
i Income tax expense (14,090)
Bk aH Profit after taxation 56,246

i
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6. EBNHESI(H) 6.  BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
%o (&) Business segments (continued)
BERER BALANCE SHEET
2003 BUEE QENEH
NBXRRE KEIMRE EHIBRE REERE REVER
Main Main  Engineering Ancillary AC/DC
thermal hydro services  equipment motors
power power  forpower  forpower  and other i
equipment  equipment stations stations products  Consolidated
ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT  ARETR
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
EE ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 6,213,775 1,369,760 1,629,099 1,210,209 2,178,946 12,601,789
REENT LB Interests in associates - - - - 90,423 90,423
ROBRHEE Unallocated corporate assets 4,821,529
AlEEE Consolidated total assets 17,513,741
gf LIABILITIES
2B&E Segment liabilities 7,183,203 833,058 276,931 1,342,565 1,220,249 10,856,006
RPBRLAE Unallocated corporate liabilities 3,136,521
AlEERE Consolidated total liabilities 13,992,527
HvEH OTHER INFORMATION
ARERH Capital additions 127,234 9,342 n 36,740 114,485 288,172
nERGH Depreciation and amortisation 118,749 29,695 5,267 24,202 30,292 208,205
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6. XBALESH (K 6.  BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
i & 5 7 Geographical segments
AEEZFEEBUATERERFER The Group's operations are located mainly in the PRC. The
A-RESERT: following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales by

geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/
services:
HEWARBED B

Sales revenue by
geographical market
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2004 31.12.2003
ARETR AREF T

Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
ER PRC 8,274,048 4,033,250
B AN Overseas 1,941,622 1,110,996
B A Total revenue 10,215,670 5,144,246
AEBIZEENGBEE2UNPER The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are located
N-R—_ZENF+-_A=+—HBR=ZZT in the PRC. The assets and liabilities situated overseas
SEFZACT R URBIEENE account for less than 10% of the Group's assets and
BONEEREEMBEREN10% ° liabilities as at 31st December, 2003 and 2004.

i
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7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Notes to the Financial Statements

Included in other operating income are the following:

Dividend income from unlisted
investment securities

Gain on disposal of unlisted
investment securities

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Government subsidy

Interest income from financial
institutions

Interest income from other third
parties

Other income

Profit from sales of raw materials

Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts

VAT refund

2004 2003
ARE T ARETT
Rmb‘000 Rmb’000
645 222

= 978

2,533 -
399 20,000
121,293 23,823
= 2,400

12,738 14,887
8,491 25,527
7,414 12,120

= 8,432
153,513 108,389
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

EXaRA 8.  PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
LERMBEME Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
2004 2003
AR® T ARETT
Rmb’'000 Rmb’000
RERER Allowance for bad and doubtful
debts 1,360 6,112
FEEE Allowance for inventories 10,822 5,680
% SR B & Auditors’ remuneration 2,780 2,780
HEREH Depreciation and amortisation 241,042 208,205
REBETEERXK Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment - 896
BE 5% B8 Net foreign exchange loss 2,494 2,978
HERERER Research and development expenses 204,203 118,234
NTRERELRAREE (H738) Service fees paid to HPEGC and its
subsidiaries (note 38) 53,455 60,960
EEEREEMECEIHA Staff costs including directors’ and
supervisors’ emoluments 526,754 436,223
BRReRBE Retirement benefit scheme
contributions 80,101 78,551
BHEMERERE GEAEMESZH) Impairment loss recognised in
respect of investments in
securities (included in other
operating expenses) 2,043 =
WEFA: and after crediting:
HnEEBELRREE (MF38) Service fee received from HPEGC
(note 38) 11,874 8,666

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

9. #MHBXZH 9.  FINANCE COSTS
2004 2003
AR¥ TR AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
fig M B X Interest on borrowings:
ARBEFAZHEERBR wholly repayable within
five years 49,197 111,917
BEARAFAZHERER not wholly repayable within
five years 8,926 10,601
58,123 122,518
B ERREAZEBERIRAMES L Less: Interest capitalised (10,234) (10,993)
47,889 111,525
AERRARERZEERARKEANREE Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
B—RIEERIZE% (ZST=F:6%) B F general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
S VNN ;0 capitalisation rate of 6% (2003: 6%) to expenditure on

qualifying assets.

5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

10. EESREENSE 10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
2004 2003
AR¥ETFTT AR%FL
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
B Fees:
HITES Executive directors 775 659
FMTES Independent non-executive
directors 180 139
EE Supervisors — =
955 798
HEme: Other emoluments:
e RETREN Salaries and other benefits
—-HITES - Executive directors = =
—FHTES - Independent non-executive
directors - =
BRe REE Retirement benefits scheme
contributions
—HITES - Executive directors 27 23
—FHTES — Independent non-executive
directors 9 6
991 827
He e : Other emoluments:
EE Supervisors
e kETEA Salaries and other benefits 362 186
RBike hEE Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 35 27
397 213
EMTFEEZEMEBE L1008 T None of the directors received more than HK$1,000,000 for

any of these two years.

RIZZ=FR-_TTNF FEERfIK The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2003 and
mHEe2@AIALTHARRRZESHE 2004 were directors and supervisors of the Company and
S HMESIRW Lo details of their emoluments are set out above.

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

11. BE 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BMEXHBE: The charge comprises:
2004 2003
AR TR AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000

REIFTET PRC enterprise income tax

—AEE - current year 26,898 13,275
- BEFEEBETRE — underprovision in prior years 136 815
27,034 14,090

&L DR A E B A AT 2 AR B BA
REI5%t BT EMEHR-

REFBEHRBLERBERR-—AAD
FZRA-TABRBEL XM AEERE
R E AR R R E QT UINER
RBMABRI5% HERBNAER -

REERNTEBEEMARA Eh —
ERARAFERLHRPEMEH R~
B AR 2 BRI ARRI3% L BE
BNMER-

5
B

The charge mainly represents PRC enterprise income tax
calculated at 15% of the estimated taxable income for the
year.

Pursuant to a document issued by the PRC Ministry of Finance
and the State Tax Bureau on 29th March, 1994, taxable
income earned by the Group, except for certain subsidiaries
and an associate, is subject to an enterprise income tax rate
of 15%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Group's PRC associates are entitled to an exemption
from PRC enterprise income tax for the year and Group's
subsidiaries are subject to an income tax rate of 33% on
the taxable income earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

1. BE (&) 11.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

AEEHBHEGE RERARNH The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
RN before taxation per the consolidated income statement as
follows:

2004 2003
Rmb’000 % Rmb’000 %
R 25 A A Profit before taxation 168,963 70,336
REBRI%NBEFE Tax charge at the enterprise
income tax rate of 15%
(2003: 15%) 25,344 15.0 10,550 15.0
REERBARIRAEH33% Additional enterprise income tax in
FEmzEMER respect of the income tax rate
of 33% for subsidiaries 811 0.5 1,115 1.6
EAERERAN R Tax effect of income not taxable
FARBPAUB BT E for tax purpose (4,101) (2.4) (2,453) (3.5)
EdERAFRAN R Tax effect of expenses not
AR HHBBHFE deductible for tax purpose 5,462 3.2 5,042 7.2
RBENRERE Effect of tax exemption granted
Rzt % to an associate (618) (0.4) (979) (1.4)
BAFEZBRERR Underprovision in respect of prior
years 136 0.1 815 1.2
REERBZ L Tax charge and effective tax rate
for the year 27,034 16.0 14,090 20.1
RZZETMNFE+-_A=+—H BHRELRE At 31st December, 2004, the deductibility of the allowance
MEMHBHREAEXNBREREERRE for doubtful debts and impairment of certain assets for
LEERERENNAR R EZRA taxation purpose has not been agreed with the local tax
RERHEHBEER DB RRER bureau. In the opinion of the directors, it is not reasonably
REEEZEERE Z = %ﬁ AR certain that the whole or part of the amount of accumulated
188,211,000 (Z T T =F: AR¥ allowance for doubtful debts and impairment of certain
193,193,0007T) & %WHM:VETDW% & assets of approximately Rmb188,211,000 (2003:
WEENEEHBEEEDSTHRRA. Rmb193,193,000) could be deducted in determining taxable

profits in the future. Accordingly, the potential deferred tax
asset effect has not been recognised in the financial

statements.
R_EZEMNF+_A=T—RARAEERN There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation for
WEEBARBEGZETHE- the year or at the balance sheet date.

i
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BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

12. BRE 12.  DIVIDENDS
2004 2003
AR¥ETR ARBF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
RAPEN—_ZEZT=FREFMRAKRK0.0087T Final dividend paid for 2003
(Z2Z=F: AR¥0.0067T) of Rmb0.008 (2002: Rmb0.006)
per share 9,513 7,135
EEREAFERREREARK0.0517T The final dividend for 2004 of Rmb0.051 (2003: Rmb0.008)
(_7 T=F: AR¥0.0087T) ' Lillizid per share has been proposed by the directors and is subject
FEERREASH A to approval by the shareholders in annual general meeting.
13. BRER 13.  EARNINGS PER SHARE
BREBENDBRAFERNARE The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the
117,572,000 (ZEZE=F: ARK profit for the year of Rmb117,572,000 (2003:
53,471,000t ) R 2 F B E#T2KR M Rmb53,471,000) and on 1,189,151,000 shares (2003:
1,189,151,000f% (= & & = #F : 1,189,151,000 shares) in issue throughout the year.

1,189,151,000/%) st & -

5
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BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

14. BEEE 14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ROEKE
hERN i

THEREN  RERE $E
1HRET &% &Y RE  RBIR @
Land and
buildings

under medium
term land Furniture, Con-
use rights  Plant and fixtures and Motor  struction-
in the PRC  machinery  equipment vehicles in-progress Total

ARBTL ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETI
Rmb'000  Amb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000

A5H THE GROUP

S )y

R-FZME-F-A At 15t January, 2004 1,505,186 1,986,251 155,078 94,943 494,643 4,236,101
REMBLARK On disposal of a subsidiary - (4,723) (372) (638) - (5,733)
RE Additions 5,967 40,395 16,941 8,148 649,081 720,532
E 8 Transfers 171,984 266,734 51,062 3,709 (493,489) -
RE Disposals (34,677) (46,453) (8,893) (20,464) - (110,487)
R-ZEME+ZB=1-H At 31st December, 2004 1,648,460 2,242,204 213,816 85,698 650,235 4,840,413
FEREH DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

RZFTWME-F-A At st January, 2004 483316 1,218,849 99,563 60,617 - 1,862,345
REHBLA On disposal of a subsidiary - (3,850) (308) (182) - (4,340)
AEERE Provided for the year 49,814 164,399 16,581 10,248 - 241,02
REREH Eliminated on disposals (22,929) (41,577) (8,175) (15,969) - (88,650)
R-ZEME+ZB=1-H At 31st December, 2004 510,201 1,337,821 107,661 54,714 - 2,010,397
REFE NET BOOK VALUES

R-ZEME+ZB=1-H At 31st December, 2004 1,138,259 904,383 106,155 30,984 650,235 2,830,016
R-EEZE+-FA=1-H At 31st December, 2003 1,021,870 767,402 55,515 34,326 494,643 2,373,756

ERIBADEERREARAZASBFEAARY Included in construction-in-progress is net interest capitalised of
5,444,000t (ZZZ =4 : AR %18,650,0007T) ° Rmb5,444,000 (2003: Rmb18,650,000).

Hh
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BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

14. EE&E (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

RABRA

HERH ELS

THEREN  RERRE %E

THRET R#& ER% RE  EBIE it
Land and
buildings

under medium

term land Furniture, Con-

use rights  Plant and fixtures and Motor  struction-

in the PRC  machinery  equipment vehicles in-progress Total

ARBTT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
fmb'000  Amb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000

b ING THE COMPANY

7S 0y

R-ZZEMF-F-R At 15t January, 2004 28,518 = 4,826 3,858 71,106 108,308

HE Additions = = 536 = 208,871 209,407

g% Transfers 156,099 50,516 36,814 - (243,429) =
RE Disposals - - (527) - - (527)
R=BSBME+=BA=t-H At 31st December, 2004 184,617 50,516 41,649 3,858 36,548 317,188

HERES DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

R-ZZMF-F-R At 15t January, 2004 4,832 = 3,457 2,487 = 10,776

KEERE Provided for the year 3,445 2,091 2,47 24 - 8,007

RENEH Disposals - - (486) - - (486)
RZBEME+-A=+-H At 31st December, 2004 8,277 2,091 5,218 2,111 = 18,297

BHFE NET BOOK VALUES

RZBEME+=-A=+-H At 31st December, 2004 176,340 48,425 36,431 1,147 36,548 298,891

RZZE=FF+-A=F—H At 31st December, 2003 23,686 - 1,369 1,371 71,106 97,532

R=AAEENAR AEERARBREFERER - The Group and the Company were granted the rights to use the

HMEBRETREBFMEE . T HFERE AH land, on which its buildings are situated, by the PRC State Land

At Administration Bureau for a period of 50 years from September
1994,

5
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BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

15. RHEARER 15.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
2004 2003
AR¥ETFTT ARBF L
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FEMHRERK Unlisted investments, at cost 2,027,841 2,027,841
& Wi T /8 /A m) R Amounts due from subsidiaries 490,771 685,118
2,518,612 2,712,959
BEEMRARLAEKMBERARFERTFE LR In the opinion of the directors, the amounts due from subsidiaries
REANTERE UHEAERBDEE- are interest free and not repayable within twelve months and are

therefore classified as non-current.

RZZZEME+ZA=+—H AR ENE Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,

AR AETERIMHAR EFBEWT: 2004, all of which are incorporated and operating in the PRC, are:
APABEE
i PNCER R A RORAEEZLE TEER

Proportion of
nominal value of
Registered registered capital held

Name of subsidiary share capital by the Company Principal activities
AREFT BE#E ) &
Rmb’000 Directly Indirectly
% %
RERMEMBREEAA * 746,853 90.94 - RiERE

Manufacture of boilers

MEERBERIER 709,237 87.37 = HERREERAR KN EERA
Manufacture of steam turbine
generator sets and hydro
turbine generator sets

MARBWIRERAMERA * 136,000 100 - REBHIERS
Provision of engineering
services for power stations

EREABHRBRERIEMELA * 859,723 62.54 - BUE
Manufacture of steam turbines

BCREHHIEEEZRHERADA ** 27,000 55.55 44.45 25
Trading

Hh
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BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

15. RHEBRARER (&) 15.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
KAFREBELD
MELRZR R AR BRITRAEEZLE FTEEK

Proportion of
nominal value of
Registered registered capital held

Name of subsidiary share capital by the Company Principal activities
ARMFR E# fE
Rmb’000 Directly Indirectly
% %

BCRERIEHEREEREMEAR * 10,000 51.25 v E

Property development

BEERPEMARNAERLAR ** 80,000 34 63.85 ClRESc
Manufacture of valves

REXERBEERIEHRAFLERAF * 50,000 60 - X BRI TR B 5T 2 5 2
Research and development
of power equipment
engineerisation technology

RRESGRBERNEBEREERA * 10,010 - 100 BIRENTREFR EERSE
Provision of repairs and
maintenance service for
steam turbines

RERBURBREMR * 8,000 - 78 TRERERE
Manufacture of engineering
equipment
REERENEEXRRNBRLDA ** 20,000 - 35(Kf) MEER
(Note) Property development
RRESREBEEIREARAA * 10,000 - 62.54 REAHETIZRS
Provision of engineering service
to turbines
* EREFERTA 5 Limited liabilities company
*x R ERAA **  Joint stock limited enterprise
fat: BERERREREHEEERD Note: According to the written declaration received from
BERAGN6%ER ZREMELE certain shareholders who held 16% registered capital
HZRRBAXRT HAEASES of BREREMEEERMNMER LA, these
CBRERIFERAERKEREE shareholders would vote for the same decision as the
REFE—BCEL RE B G H 8 Group and therefore the Group could control more
NERFHE- than half of the voting power of the company.

5
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15. RWEBLRAER ()

NESHEDNESERAEAFE Z%Zz
I AREECEEEEATECLMER
ZRRBIGECHBER Tz#%@i@ﬁé
ke

ﬁé\qz}_géi I\EH%

BMBLRILRAEMES

REAFA AEERFTEVRERERS
TREREARARA([BERAR]) Z
72. 18%*&@0&/%% N YNGRV
BHERR

16. REEDQAER

15.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

During the year, the Group disposed of its 72.18% interests

in RAEMBERBRIEAREMELE ("DELQA"). After the
disposal, A # 2 Al became an associate of the Group.

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEE PN

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
ARETFRT ARETT AR¥EFr AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
FELETRERAK Unlisted investment at cost - = 54,730 45,100
LR Share of net assets 109,440 90,423 - =
EEREEE Impairment loss — - (5,000) (5,000)
109,440 90,423 49,730 40,100

AEENARRAMGRBE=ZFTZRHAERAD

([ZME]) RBRER B N4 A%HW(%E
B)EREMDR ([6ERRS]) EMEL 55
B44.25%F41% © MR D Al AT B KB ZH
DA ZFRFEEBRHE £E HELRTMH
AEBENESBA MBI REER M BER
MTEEMEN BEXR EERREBLCIESR:
HEERE EERETEEBRRRERRE RER
BT RGH REREERNTE A

WO AEBEHESBEEKERGREERET
NAI([HESEE]) RABRLAINEMRER 55
7/%50%%D27.28% o WA B BTEA BIRFER LA
N BESEBEEEBREETKERME M
T-ABRPAETEERAREREEELE SEH R
jﬂ%o

The Group and the Company hold respectively 44.25% and 41% in
the registered capital of BB E=FERHBER R A ("=HFE") and
BRAER-RIERREEEH)FREMELA ("KRKRHB "), which
are companies established in the PRC. =2 is engaged in
development, production and sale of plasma-enhanced and
electrochemical surface ceramicised light alloy materials, building
aluminum templates and boards, industrial special nature materials,
electrophoresis paints and electrolyte, relevant chemical products.
82 )R fR 75 is engaged in the provision of maintenance, installation
and on-site services to owners of turbines, boilers and electricity
generators.

In addition, the Group holds respectively 50% and 27.28% in the
registered capital of HFES BB KEAURNEFRAETE AR ("HE
BE/E") and £ 2D A, which are companies established in the
PRC. 258 is engaged in manufacture of electrical
equipments. A £ 22 & is engaged in the provision of quality control

services for boilers manufacturing.
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17. RBHEMHRE 17. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
KEME KA T
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003

ARBFR ARETT ARETR ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000  Rmb’000 Rmb’000

REEE Non-current investments
HEIFEETIRE Unlisted investment securities
— AR E KA in the PRC, net of
BB impairment loss 65,051 68,970 17,879 14,300
REZHNES Held-to-maturity debt
securities 3,209,445 - - -
3,274,496 68,970 17,879 14,300
MERE Current investments
BEZIENES Held-to-maturity debt
securities 1,672,940 296,109 - -
EEMRBESFURECEETNPREE The directors consider that the investment securities are
(E0 worth at least their carrying amount.
18. #E& 18.  INVENTORIES
N | VNN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
AR®EFr AREFT AREFT ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
R# Raw materials 2,095,643 1,137,431 - -
T8 Work in progress 4,329,610 2,523,791 86,288 -
2UPX o Finished goods 465,228 489,425 — -
B b EE R A A Properties under development 1,118,663 432,910 - -
AREEZRIE Completed properties
3 2 m for sale 111,456 182,564 - -
8,120,600 4,766,121 86,288 -
FEH B ARK2057,740,0000C (ZEF Included above are raw materials of approximately
=% : AK#¥1,080,380,0007T) KR 5 Rmb2,057,740,000 (2003: Rmb1,080,380,000), finished goods of

AE#76,639,0007C (ZZET=F: AR¥ approximately Rmb76,639,000 (2003: Rmb35,649,000) and
35,649,000 ) M B K m Rk AR K completed properties for sale of approximately Rmb11,858,000
11,858,000 (Z T =F: ARK (2003: Rmb21,853,000) carried at net realisable value.
21,853,0007T) M ARNIRE 2 B ER & E

m AR E# R ET R e

5
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19. EWBER 19. TRADE DEBTORS
BTEPZEEHENER —RIEER The credit terms given to the customers vary and are
KPZHHBERME - AT BEUERHEEL generally based on the financial strengths of individual
EXEBcEERR AEEEHETER customers. In order to effectively manage the credit risks
ERAE associated with trade debtors, credit evaluations of customers

are performed periodically.

REERBERABRKESNRRAMNT: An aged analysis of trade debtors at the balance sheet date
is as follows:
X588

THE GROUP
2004 2003
AE®F AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
1F R Within 1 year 1,830,659 1,343,318
1R 2F 1 to 2 years 333,065 405,224
2EE3F 2 to 3 years 103,798 95,468
3FAE Qver 3 years 191,923 259,263
2,459,445 2,103,273

i
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20, BRESREWR(FR) X 20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORK
rEE
THE GROUP
2004 2003
ARMFTT ARBEFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
REEEBRAMNEESR: Contracts in progress at the
balance sheet date:
AN N Contract costs incurred 4,716,220 3,564,474
JE 16 % M N BR AT B R B 18 Recognised profits less
recognised losses 277,033 278,178
4,993,253 3,842,652
B RERIREERE Less: Progress billings (4,587,336) (2,526,421)
405,917 1,316,231
Hep: Represented by:
BESRERR Amounts due from customers
included in current assets 1,013,898 1,388,104
BEESRBKR Amounts due to customers
included in current liabilities (607,981) (71,873)
405,917 1,316,231
HE-_ZEZ=-F+_A=+—HN=-ZZ As at 31st December, 2003 and 2004, there were no
ME+—A=+—HIL - YERFEHRE retentions held by customers for contract works.
ARITIER-
2. EBUWHEARRE 21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
WRIBARER Tt BEEEEND The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
MR - repayable on demand.

5
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22.

23.

24,

JE 4 Bk K

EREFNEREITDT:

1E R

1EE26F
2FER3F
3FAE

EkEE

BULEAERTANIRRBERRY
¥hmERCUBMZEERE-BEREE
mB AR 2 878,848,000 (2003:
2,014,878,000 AR EERZ T A4 H
BRETIZENEE MEAERBAR M
EHRBHANEERE+ —EAARNRE
HIMERTIRERES MBEARDERE

RERERDANE

WHARERR T E REEAEERH
PR

22. TRADE CREDITORS
An aged analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet
date is as follows:
rEE
THE GROUP
2004 2003
AR® T AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Within 1 year 2,054,229 1,318,262
1 to 2 years 211,480 82,193
2 to 3 years 45,868 12,539
Over 3 years 69,393 62,550
2,381,212 1,475,544

23.

24,

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

The amount represents the progress payments received from
customers in respect of work in progress and properties sold
in advance. Included in deposits received of
Rmb2,878,848,000 (2003: Rmb2,014,878,000) were the
progress payments received in respect of contract works to
be commenced twelve months from the balance sheet date
and were classified in the balance sheet as non-current. The
remaining balance represents deposit received for contract
works to be commenced within one year and were classified
as current liabilities.

AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is
repayable on demand.

=
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25. EXBE 25.  TAX LIABILITIES
rEE
THE GROUP
2004 2003
AR¥FiT AR%F
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
#(E Value added tax 2,976 2,590
FTi8# Enterprise income tax 11,480 (1,644)
BER Business tax 4,650 3,702
Hy Others 3,393 1,165
22,499 5,813
26. fa X 26. BORROWINGS
31| N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
BOER  RHER ay  BOEX  EMER &g RERER BOEX
Bank Other Bank Other Bank Bank
loans loans Total loans loans Total loans loans

AEBTR ARBFL ARMTR ARKTT ARETT ARBTT ARMFR ARETT
Rmb’000  Rmb’000 Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Amb'000  Rmb'000 Rmb'000  Rmb'000

ERERENT: The borrowings are
repayable as follows:

—ER Within one year 784,200 - 784,200 561,779 - 561,779 135,000 90,000
—EfE More than one year but

not exceeding two years 393,000 - 393,000 594,000 - 594,000 60,000 60,000
ZERE More than two years but

not exceeding five years 705,000 - 705,000 904,500 1,310 905,810 255,000 240,000
RENE After five years 265,395 126,067 391,462 440,394 122,753 563,147 - 75,000

2,147,595 126,067 2,273,662 2,500,673 124,063 2,624,736 450,000 465,000
BBRERBEENA Less: Amounts due within
R-FREFHH one year classified

as current liabilities (784,200)

(784,200) (561,779) (561,779) (135,000)  (90,000)

1,363,395 126,067 1,489,462 1,938,894 124,063 2,062,957 315,000 375,000

5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

26.

27.

28.

fER (&)

R-ZEZWMFE+-/F=+—8§"
h AR #48,178,000T (ZEE=
#65,000,00070) BB EFE K

SEER

FIAR

_77@¢+ A=+—H8 AKEERRE

At 7k A R #450,000,0007 (Z 2

Eir/\ﬁ?ﬁ%%aooo,oooﬂ RIFEEE R
HER.

EEERAEARRTGE.

LN

ERERERBAEARKIT
at ffi

BREARGR:
BB E AR
HA%

RTREBREMAZEERRTERES
FONBEEE 2R ARSI BEEARE

HRZEE AERSEz-
FERAFEARRAL |E-
REHRERARRE

R AR #192,500,0007T (= $E¢
192,000,0007T) ZEERBAET KBE
RERE_ZENERNE Tt E-

R _ZEE-—"FRHEAEBRARK
30,000,0007c — AN EFEEAERARE
32,000,000 K — W ANFEEABHAR
#23,000,0007T 2 Al &2 F F £5.76% -
5.76%#15.49%5T B °

It R 3 4 B T R AR

26. BORROWINGS (continued)
At 31st December 2004, Rmb48,178,000 (2003:
Rmb65,000,000) of the Group’s borrowings are secured.
At 31st December 2004, Rmb450,000,000 (2003:
Rmb465,000,000) of the Group’s and the Company’s bank
borrowings are guaranteed by HPEGC.
Other loans are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
27. SHARE CAPITAL
2004 & 2003
AREFT
Rmb’000
Ordinary shares of Rmb1 each
Registered 1,189,151
Issued and fully paid:
State shares 720,000
H shares 469,151

28.

1,189,151

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
investors or foreign investors, State shares and H shares rank
pari passu in all respects with each other.

ADVANCE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

HPEGC has agreed not to charge any interest on other long
term loan of Rmb192,500,000 (2003: Rmb192,000,000) for
the year ended 31st December, 2004.

The remaining Rmb30,000,000 raised in 2001,
Rmb32,000,000 raised in 1999 and Rmb23,000,000 raised
in 1998 will be subject to an annual interest charge of
5.76%, 5.76% and 5.49% respectively.

There is no fixed repayment term.

Hh
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

29.

30.

EXFEERE

REBE_EE=F+_A=+—HIEE"
AEB A R1,890,0007T H BRI EE
REHEBERNER AR B ER &
RERAHEEEARES,361,0007TH &
FURE—VEARESENB LR ER
(BT3E31)

EEMER

EBAEERE:

BT & E

&

FE WO

HEe RN e RENKEA

RT&EERAS
FE A AR AR
EHEeENRREFER

Elme

ERBE

REE AR ES

i i B0 OB B 2 B

BEFEL HE
STES

B

EHURE

RAFEER REHMBRRIMNEZEKK
AAARM38,513,000/1 B8 A AR K
3,113,000 BHEEAEBHEER -

5
BEew

29. MAIJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2003, the Group
acquired additional interestin RREREHEEXRHBER
A A at a consideration of Rmb1,890,000 together with the
amount of RMB5,361,000 included in investments in
securities were transferred to as interests in subsidiaries (note
31) indirect held by the Company.

30. PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY

NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF

Property, plant and equipment

Inventories

Trade debtors

Other debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Trade creditors

Other creditors and accrued
expenses

Deposits received

Tax liabilities

Interest in an associate
Reserve realised on partial
disposal of interests in

a subsidiary

Net cash outflow arising on
partial disposal of interests in
a subsidiary:

Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash
disposal of

2004

ARE TR

Rmb‘000

1,393
25,109
24,368

24,804
86,966
(5,378)

(15,706)
(130,132)
(35)

2003
AREFT
Rmb’000

11,389
(5.264)

(22)

6,103

6,103

(86,966)

(80,863)

The subsidiary disposed of during the year contributed
approximately Rmb38,513,000 to the Group's turnover and
a loss of Rmb3,113,000 to the Group's profit from

operations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

31. BAMEBALR 31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
2004 2003
AR¥ETFTT AR%FL
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
EBEAEERE: Net assets acquired:
BlEEE Property, plant and equipment - 1,858
FE Inventories - 470,382
& LT B 3R Trade debtors - 17,671
HERYR ke RBNHKIE Other debtors, deposits and
prepayments - 56,795
RGBS Bank balances and cash = 61,792
J"Zfﬁ@m Trade creditors = (286,936)
CEMNRRETER Other creditors and accrued
charges - (66,338)
BEliz& Deposits received - (168,026)
SEENE Tax recoverable - 3,518
DY R E R Minority interests = (13,465)
ARN—FRNERZER Borrowings — due with one year - (70,000)
- 7,251
xHAR: Satisfied by:
BHe Cash - 1,890
EHMKRE Investments in securities - 5,361
- 7,251
ERBANBARCRERACERIRAFBEZOM: Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
ENREKE Cash consideration - (1,890)
EBAZRITEGELRE Bank balances and cash - 61,792
ERBANBARIZEE R Net inflow of cash and cash
ReFRIRARE equivalents in respect of
the purchase of a subsidiary - 59,902

RZZFZ=FFNMEBOMB AR RARE The subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31st December,
BEREFEEBIA LLBERIRERE 2003 and did not contribute any turnover or result or cash flows
to the Group.

Hh
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

32. THAERE 32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
KEME KA T
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003

ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETIL
Rmb’000  Rmb'000  Rmb’000  Rmb’000

BEDR—RRITREM Guarantee given to banks and
EESENER T 1 financial institutions in
1R 2 R respect of general banking
facilities granted to
—-MBAA ~ subsidiaries - - 1,379,000 1,274,500
-HEe - others 232,690 30,900 - -
232,690 30,900 1,379,000 1,274,500
33. BEAREE 33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
r&EE PN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
ARETFRT ARETT AREFTrT AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
RERENEARH Capital expenditure for the
acquisition of:
[nvestment
-BEEHERR - contracted for but not
BBRETEE provided in the
financial statements 10,739 3,575 10,739 3,575
BERETEEMNEAX T Property, plant and equipment
—BENERRTH - contracted for but not
WmEPEE provided in the
financial statements 375,109 321,090 50,414 88,366
—BREERED - authorised but not
contracted for 214,000 - - -

599,848 324,665 61,153 91,941

5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZSEZENE+_-_HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

34.

35.

36.

3

BZ-TTIMEt-A=t+-B A%£EA
ERREARZNEERRR LT~k
IEBEAFNBER FE2IEEEA
AmT:

HERT
BAET

M RN AE I A
EEHR

R-ZEZENF+_A=+—H A£EHE

EFREL A ARE48,179,0007T(2003: A R
#50,856,0007T) 2 T REFIEAR BIR
TRTIAEEETRENKAR-

EHEARTER

HRBEREERTRITEMBREEALTE
BRADAERRITEER - RRITEESR
ZER CERZBIERSERFENR
TEREEREE-

34.

35.

36.

COMMITMENTS

During the year ended 31st December, 2004, the Group
entered into a number of foreign exchange contracts to
manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates
on construction contracts. The foreign exchange contracts
held at the balance sheet date were as follows:

ARE
THE GROUP
2004 2003
Sales of Japanese yen ¥4,955,000,000 =
Purchase of United
State Dollars US$44,572,000 =

The Company has no such commitments for both years.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st December, 2004, the Group had pledged land and
buildings having a net book value of approximately
Rmb48,179,000 (2003: Rmb50,856,000) to secure certain of
the Group's bank borrowings.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts represented deposits pledged to banks and
financial institutions to secure bank borrowings and general
banking facilities granted to the Group and the Company.
Such pledged bank deposits were released upon the
repayment of the bank borrowings during the year.

Hh
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_SEZFENE+_-_A=+—RHLLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2004

3.

38.

iR R4 7 5 8

RE-ANANEFREORE ARERKE
KERBERANTRBAETHERBRERE
BREENERKREEES -ASERRER
TEATENN%ANEREZES BT
REERTEMNHM BRIR LM BEKRE
FRERBEAEZERIN ERERA
AEEEERREXNBDERE REAK
BMXHEE: BEHE ARERESX
WERKRE RERRENHEE BRRETH
BES EBEHA ZARENRETIBAE
ATEARRBERAE Lo RIMREAED
HERBREXEERRAEE S MHERK
BT EBRHR ZREARFREES
AEMNEHE YaRBETHLERRE
FEERXNGBERET L HBERHR:
AEERESKMRARE REKREH X
Bffe

BEEHALRS

ARBR-_ZEZENE+A+ENREEE
AR RENBAREEEBREEHRE
HRBOFTBR- U BERERAR-_STN
F+RAtEMREERERRARENBRR
RE BBEOEHA-BEHHE A5E
NFREEERARENBAR RAEK
B2HRBERBES I AAR
¥ 53,455,000 (ZEE=F: AR
#60,960,0007T) & A R ¥ 11,874,0007T
(ZET=%F: AR¥8,666,0007T) °

BE-_ZENE+-_A=+—0 X£BEM
FTREEELARZHBAREMBREER
BARA44,296,0000 (ZEE=F: AR
#26,459,0007T) - R FERZLBEUR
SIS ERT

BE_TENF+-A=+-B KEEE
AAMBFREER BAADRE—
BRE

BURRSBRERABDREZ G EF2EM
424128,
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37.

38.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

In accordance with regulations issued by the local
government in 1996, the Group is required to make
contributions to a defined contribution retirement fund which
is administered by the Harbin Social Insurance Administration
Bureau of the local government. The Group is required to
contribute 22% of the basic salary of its existing PRC staff,
while employees contribute 8% of their basic salary. Apart
from the above, the Group is also obliged to pay pensions
and retirement benefits during the transition period. During
the transition period, pension payments are calculated by
reference to the staff's monthly basic salaries and period of
service and are paid by the Harbin Social Insurance
Administration Bureau and the Group. After the transition
period, pension payments will be paid by the Harbin Social
Insurance Administration Bureau only by reference to the
payable amount of individual saving account and the Group
has no material obligation for the pension payments or any
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions
described above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into a new services agreement on
provision of welfare and support services with HPEGC on
10th December, 2004. This agreement is effectively a renewal
of the original services agreement signed with HPEGC on
7th November, 1994. Pursuant to the above agreements,
the services fees paid to and received from HPEGC and its
subsidiaries amounted to approximately Rmb53,455,000
(2003: Rmb60,960,000) and Rmb11,874,000 (2003:
Rmb8,666,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31st December, 2004, the Group made
purchases from subsidiaries of HPEGC amounting to
Rmb44,296,000 (2003: Rmb26,459,000). The transaction
prices were determined by reference to the market prices
for similar transactions.

At the balance sheet date, credit facilities granted by certain
banks to the Company were secured by corporate guarantee
given by HPEGC.

For details of the arrangement concerning amount due to
ultimate holding company, see notes 24 and 28.
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Disclosure of Significant Events
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RELRAINERE YERABRERMITE
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The 2003 Annual General Meeting of the Company was held
in the meeting-room on the 17th Floor, at Block B, No. 39
Sandadongli Road, Dongli District, Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, PRC, on 18th June, 2004 (Friday). All of the
proposed resolutions stated in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting on 25th April, 2004 were passed at the meeting.

On 5th February, 2004, the Company signed the Agreement
with GE, investing together to establish an equity joint
venture company-GE-HPEC Energy Services (Qinhuangdao)
Co., Ltd.. The registered capital of the Joint Venture
Company is the equivalent of US$6,000,000, HPEC made its
investment of US$2,940,000, representing a forty-nine
percent (49%) share of the registered capital, GE made its
investment of US$3,060,000, representing a fifty-one percent
(51%) share of the registered capital. And on 22nd October,
2004, the Company signed the Equity Transfer Contract with
Nanjing Turbine and Electric Machinery (Group) Company,
transferring eight percent (8%) equity, now the Company
holds forty-one percent (41%) interest in the registered
capital of this Joint Venture Company.

On 27th March, 2004, the Company signed hydro power
turbo-generators manufacture contract for Three-Gorge Right
Bank (4 units), totally amounting to Rmb1.5 billion.

On 30th June, 2004, the first 9FA heavy duty gas turbine in
China, which HPEC and GE united to produce, realized
one-time fired test success in Qinhuangdao Branch of the
Company, and the delivery ceremony was held on 30th July,
2004.

On 27th August, 2004, because of working changes, the
Board of Directors of the Company approved Mr. Lin Zhi-
hua of Richards Butler to resign himself of the company co-
secretary of the Company, and appointed Miss Li Hui-fen as
the company co-secretary of the Company.

i
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Disclosure of Significant Events
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On 27th August, 2004, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved “the Board Special Committees Working
Provision”, and established four special committees. The
specific constitution of each special committee is as follows:
the auditing committee consists of three (3) persons, Ding
Xue-mei (the independent director), Zhou Dao-jiong (the
independent director), and Duan Hong-yi, and the
independent director Ding Xue-mei is appointed as the
director commissary; the remuneration committee consists
of three (3) persons, Li Gen-shen (non-executive director),
Du Xing-you (the independent director), and LiangWei-yan,
and the non-executive director Li Gen-shen is appointed as
the director commissary; the nomination committee consists
of three (3) persons, Du Xing-you (the independent director),
Ding Xue-mei (the independent director), and Duan Hong-vi,
and the independent director Du Xing-you is appointed as
the director commissary; the strategy and development
committee consists of five (5) persons, Gong Jing-kun,
Li Gen-shen (non-executive director), Liang Wei-yan, Shang
Zhong-fu, and Wu Wei-zhang and Gong Jing-kun is
appointed as the director commissary.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) signed a service
agreement with Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group
Corporation and its subsidiaries (the Parent Group) on 10th
December, 2004. According to the new agreement, the
parent group will provide services in training, recuperation,
housing, medical etc. for the Group’'s employees and the
annual trade value will be RMB49,920,000; The Group will
provide water supply, power supply and tele-communication
service to the Parent Group and the annual trade will be
RMB8,920,000. The duration of the new agreement is three
years starting from 1st January, 2005 to 31st December,
2007.
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The important technology introduction of the Company:

On 19th May, 2004, the Harbin Boiler Company under the
Company signed the Technology Transfer Agreement for
300-1000MW single shell deaerator with Toshiba, Japan.

In July, 2004, the Company signed the License Agreement
for flue gas desulfurization system with Alstom, France.

In August, 2004, the Harbin Electrical Machinery Company
under the Company introduced the 300MW pumped storage
units manufacture technology from Alstom, France.

On 15th September, 2004, the Harbin Boiler Company under
the Company signed the Technology License Agreement for
600-1000MW ultra super critical boiler with Mitsubishi,
Japan.

On 26th November, 2004, the Harbin Boiler Company under
the Company signed the SCR Technology Transfer Agreement
with Mitsubishi, Japan.

Other than disclosed above, the Company did not have other

significant events, which should be disclosed in the period
under review.

=



" & #

Information on the Company

DNAEERE REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY
RBEBNRERNERRAA MBEBNRERDER LA

RAIRNER ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited

NI SIS B REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY
REARAME Block 3

REIA Nangang District High Technology Production Base
RERAE™ Harbin

HEaNREEEIRE Heilongjiang

1 5% : 2301001003796 PRC

Registration No. 2301001003796

UNGIE: Z: B8 OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY
REARLNE Block B, 39 Sanda Dongli Road
ERIA Dongli District

BEE™ Harbin

87 &= K3 395 BE Heilongjiang

HE &Y 150040 PRC

B 86-451-82135717582135727 Postcode: 150040

BE: 86-451-82135700 Tel:  86-451-82135717 or 82135727

Fax: 86-451-82135700

EERNEEt PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
B5 20th Floor, Alexandra House

HIR 16-20 Chater Road

AT B 16— 2058 Central

BULKE-+7#& Hong Kong

EEREKA LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

I E Geng Lei

RERK AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mk Zhao Ke-fei

HEr Deng Xian-yuan

DNAME COMPANY SECRETARY

i Deng Xian-yuan
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Information on the Company

3L AUDITORS
B BERASENET Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
MEEIM Certified Public Accountants
BB 26th Floor
R Wing On Centre

FHER15% 111 Connaught Road Central
FKEH D Hong Kong

e VAN
EHEXEHHEERERAT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants Limited
REARKEME 30th Floor
tigm Bund Center
TEZRHE2225% 222 Yan An Road East
ONEE L3018 Shanghai

PRC
pxed-n LEGAL ADVISORS
B EE as to PRC Law
BEEMEEM Haiwen & Partners
REARAME Room 1016, Beijing Silver Tower
Sl No.2, Dongsanhuan North Road
HE R R =R K25 Chaoyang District
HRAE Beijing
1016%E PRC
BBERE as to Hong Kong Law
EREEMT Richards Butler
BB 20th Floor
HIR Alexandra House
EITE 16— 205 16-20 Chater Road
BLURE=+F# Central
Hong Kong

thER LISTING INFORMATION
HI% H Shares
ERBAERSM The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
%1133 Code: 1133

Hm
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Information on the Company

ARROEE

MAET

XBERFES

22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

REEBRE

P. O. Box 11258

Church Street Station
New York, NY10286-1258

ROBFETRE
ERESRLARAA
BE

FIR

B & E 1995
wRRS LR

DEERMRMAME
EREBORBROERAAESENER
REREETE R = KT E395%BE

BREESH

FA8H 180 288 (B ABIEL)
F4%: 9:00-11:00

T4 2:00 - 4:00

BT 86-451-821357175(82135727
EH: 86-451-82135700
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DEPOSITARY

The Bank of New York
American Depositary Receipts
22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

Investor Relations

P. O. Box 11258

Church Street Station
New York, NY10286-1258

SHARE REGISTER AND TRANSFER OFFICE
HKSCC Nominees Limited

7th Floor

Vicwood Plaza

199 Des Voeux Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
Available at Secretary Office of the Board of Directors

Block B, No. 39 Sanda Dongli Road, Dongli District, Harbin, PRC.

SHAREHOLDERS RECEPTION TIME

On 8th, 18th, and 28th (the following day in case holiday)
From: 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and

from: 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Tel:  86-451-82135717 or 82135727

Fax: 86-451-82135700
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Documents Available for Inspection

1. ARAZTEMEEREER. 1. The original copy of the 2004 Annual Report of the Company.
2. ARRBER M BERKRER 2. The original copy of the Company's audited financial
statements.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BEERRESNRBEROERAA ([ARF]) NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Harbin
ETEM200566A130 (28A) EFNEEREA Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) for the year
RAMBZEIEREETY IE=KH HK39 of 2004 will be held at Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road, Dongli

BEEI7TEERAE RIT20045ERRAFAE District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, the People’s Republic of

NERETSIEE: China on Friday, 13th June, 2005 at 9:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:

ERBEH As Ordinary Business

1. BRI ERDFEE2004512A318 1E 1, To receive and consider the report of directors for the year
FENESEREE: ended 31st December, 2004;

2. FERWHERDAIEZ2004512A318 1E 2. To receive and consider the report of the supervisory
FEMNESEREE: committee for the year ended 31st December, 2004;

3. BRI ER DA EE2004512A318 1E 3. To receive and consider the audited accounts of the Company
HFREEZRE IZEMmmE: and the auditors’ report for the year ended 31st December,
2004;

4. BREAAESEATLAREAREMEE 4. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to
LERAARESEETEME determine the appointment of the Company's auditors and
authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to fix their

remuneration;

5. EMREARFRMFFEREERAR 5. To declare the 2004 final dividend of Rmb0.0510 per share.
#0.05107C°

5
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Y-S

6. BEARAEZSCARZATMNAHMBE
FERFERIEEI/ES HEHELA
AT —RBRRAGTHER AL

7. BEARFEZSEBTAMEE EHH
AR EESERREERE —XID
ZRAEEREARTBBESINARERAE
BEADEEBITHIE R A20% R
B-RREAEMMARNREREBALI2EA
FEBRRAGBBHARBHBELELAR
REERRIL-MR EREBEFRRBERK
BRTEAER ZREFTHALAN
(RAER)ETRHK FTAKEARNTE
TR B ARBRA AR & A
BRmMRNEEHRRAMELNES-

8. EIWELFERTABEIEXNER
YEEEETENEREBBTHERER
AIERENEETE

As Special Business

(o)}

8.

To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to
appoint any person to fill in a casual vacancy in the Board
of Directors or as an additional director, his term of office
shall expire at the conclusion of the next following annual
meeting of the Company;

To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company, with
complying the related regulations of the laws and rules and
in their considered proper opportunity, to place the new
shares at once or many times, which per value total amount
will be no more than twenty percent (20%) of the Company's
listed H shares’ per value total amount on this resolution
approval day. The authorization will be valid form the
resolution approval day, its duration will be 12 months or
expire until the Annual General Meeting of the Company
approves the special decision to withdraw or modify this
resolution. If the above resolution of placing the new shares
is approved and carried out, to authorize the Board of
Directors of the Company to make necessary revision on the
clause 15 and clause 16 in the Articles of Association of the
Company, in order to reflect the alterations of the Company’s
capital stock structure and registered capital, which results
from the new shares placing.

To receive and consider the proposal of revising the related
clauses in the Articles of Association of the Company, and
authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to apply
to the related state government departments for going
through modification formalities.
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Whereas the needs of the Company’s business development
and the revision of Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited has been effective on 31st March, 2004,
the Board of Directors of the Company advised the Annual
General Meeting to make related resolutions on revising the
Articles of Association of the Company accordingly, the
related revising suggestions were as follows:

To add the following contents in clause 11 in the Articles of
Association of the Company:

a. To undertake the harbor facilities operation,
passenger transportation services, and to engage in
cargo loading and unloading, lighter transportation
and storage and warehouse management, harbor
service business and the lease of harbor machinery,
facilities and equipment and etc.

b. To conduct itself or act as agent for import and export
of various products, except those specialized import
and export commodities stipulated by the State and
import of special goods that are prohibited by the
State. To engage in manufacturing with supplied raw
materials and “three processing and one
compensation trade” business, develop the mutual-
distribution trade and transit trade.

C. The business of environmental protection engineering.

To add a second paragraph in clause 63 in the Articles of
Association of the Company: in accordance with the Listing
Rules of Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, where any
shareholder is required to abstain from voting on any
particular resolution or restricted to voting only for or only
against any particular resolution, any votes cast by or on
behalf of such shareholder in contravention of such
requirement or restriction shall not counted.
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3. To revise the last sentence of the first paragraph in clause
82 in the Articles of Association of the Company. The original
sentence “The notices in which the intention to proposed a
person for election as a director and such person’s
willingness to be elected is covered should be submitted to
the Company 7 days prior to the date of the Annual General
Meeting” was suggested to be modified into “The minimum
length of the period, during which notice to the Company
of the intention to propose a person for election as a director
and during which notice to the Company by such person of
his willingness to be elected will be no less than seven days.
That the period for lodgment of the above-mentioned notices
will commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the Annual General Meeting and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of the Annual General
Meeting”.

By order of the Board
Deng Xian-yuan
Company Secretary

Harbin, the People’s Republic of China, 16th April, 2005

Registered office of the Company:
Block B, Nangang High Technology
Production Base

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province
People’s Republic of China

Office Address of the Company:

Block B, No 39 Sandadongli Road, Dongli District
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China
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Notes:

For the purpose of determining the list of shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting
and the receive of the final dividend to be declared at that
meeting, the Company shall temporarily suspend changes to
the register of shareholders from 13th May, 2005 to 12th
June, 2005 (both day inclusive). Shareholders whose names
appear on the register at the time of the suspension of
registration shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting and shall be entitled to receive of the final
dividend of the year of 2004 (if declared at that General
Meeting). Persons who purchased shares of the Company
during the period of suspension of registration shall not be
entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting nor to the
final dividend of the year of 2004.

Shareholders intending to attend the Annual General Meeting
shall give written notice of the same to the Company, which
shall be lodged at the registered office or office address of
the Company on or before 4:00 p.m. on 23rd May, 2005.

A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more persons
(whether or not a shareholder of the Company) as his proxy
to attend and vote instead of him.

To be valid, the form of proxy, together with a duly notarized
power of attorney or other document of authority, of any,
under which the form is signed must be deposited at the
registered office or office address of the Company not less
than 24 hours before the time for holding the Annual
General Meeting.



